
Page 1 of 3 

AGENDA  
CITY OF TULSA BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT  

Regularly Scheduled Meeting  
Tulsa City Council Chambers  

175 East 2nd Street, 2nd Level  
One Technology Center  

Tuesday, December 12, 2023, 1:00 p.m.  
  

Meeting No. 1328  
  
If you wish to present or share any documents, written comments, or exhibits during the hearing, please 
submit them by 9:00 a.m. the day of the hearing. Remember to reference the case number and 
include your name and address.  

Email: planning@cityoftulsa.org  

Mail or In Person: City of Tulsa BOA, 175 E. 2nd St., Suite 480, Tulsa, OK 74103  
 

MINUTES 
 

1. Approval of Minutes of August 22, 2023 (Meeting No. 1322) 
 

2. Approval of Minutes of September 12, 2023 (Meeting No. 1323) 
 

3. Approval of Minutes of September 26, 2023 (Meeting No. 1324) 
 

4. Approval of Minutes of October 10, 2023 (Meeting No. 1325) 
 

5. Approval of Minutes of October 24, 2023 (Meeting No. 1326) 
 

6. Approval of Minutes of November 14, 2023 (Meeting No. 1327) 
 

  
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

  
7. 23557 – Lou Reynolds   

Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a Library in the RS-3 District (Table 5.020, Table 
5-2, Table 5-2.5); Variance to reduce the required 25-foot street setback in the RS-3 District (Sec. 
5.030-A, Table 5-3) 
Location: 1110 E. 45th Pl. S. (CD 9)  
(Item was approved on August 8th, 2023; the Board moved to reconsider item on 
September 12th, 2023; Board further continued item until 12/12/2023) 
  

NEW APPLICATIONS 
  

8. 23600 – Bell Land Use LLC, Robert Bell  
Action Requested: Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS-3 District 
(45.031-D); Variance to allow the floor area of  detached accessory buildings to exceed 500 
square feet and 40% of the floor area of the principal residential structure (Section 45.030-B) 
Variance to allow a detached Accessory Dwelling Unit to exceed one story or 18 feet in height 
and to exceed 10 feet in height to the top of the top plate. (Section 90.090-C) 
Location: 1624 S. Troost Ave. (CD 4)  

  



Page 2 of 3 

9. 23602 – Robby A. Coday
Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a Public, Civic, and Institutional/ Religious 
Assembly Use in the RS-2 District (Table 5.020, Table 5-2, Table 5-2.5)
Location: 641 S. 129th E. Ave. (CD 3)

10. 23603 – Janet Espino
Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a Manufactured Housing Unit in the AG zoning 
district. (Section 25.020-C; Table 25-1.5); Special Exception to allow the Manufactured Housing 
Unit permanently (Sec.40.210); Special Exception to reduce the required parking ratio for a 
Manufactured Housing Unit in the AG District (Sec. 55.050-K)
Location: 2703 E. 41st St. (CD 1)

11. 23604 – Randy Glad
Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a parks and recreation use in an AG District
(Table 25-1)
Location: 14717 E. 11th St. (CD 6)

12. 23605 – Ashton Prickett
Action Requested: Special Exception to permit an Assembly and Entertainment Use in an AG 
zoned district (Sec. 25.020; Table 25-1)
Location: N. of the NW/c of E. 21st St. S. and S. 193rd E. Ave. (CD 6)

13. 23606 – Chris Ossenbeck
Action Requested: Special Exception to increase the permitted driveway width in a RS-3 district 
(Sec. 55.090-F.3)
Location: 8108 S. Florence Ave. (CD 2)

14. 23608 – SBWG, LLC
Action Requested: Variance to permit a dynamic display sign in the OL District (Sec. 60.060-E); 
Variance to allow a dynamic display sign within 20-feet of the driving surface (Sec. 60.100-D); 
Variance to permit a dynamic display sign within 200-feet of an R district (Sec. 60.100-F) 
Location: 7318 S. Yale Ave. (CD 8)

15. 23609 – Tim Boeckman, CJC Architects
Action Requested: Minor Special Exception to modify a previously approved site plan for a 
religious assembly use in the RS-3 District (Table 5.020, Table 5-2; Sec.70.120)
Location: 10310 S. Sheridan Rd. (CD 8)

16. 23611 – David Brunson
Action Requested: Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS-3 District 
(45.031-D); Variance to allow the floor area of detached accessory buildings to exceed 500 
square feet and 40% of the floor area of the principal residential structure (Section 45.030-A, 
45.031-D.6)
Location: 2807 E. 3rd St. (CD 4)

17. 23612 – Nathan Cross
Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a Mining and Mineral Processing Use in the IM 
District (Sec. 15.020; Table 15-2)
Location: E. of Highway 169 between 46th St. N. and 56th St. N. (CD 3)



Page 3 of 3 

18. 23613 – AAB Engineering, LLC
Action Requested: Variance to permit a dynamic display sign to exceed 48 square feet (Sec.
60.080-E)
Location: 4948 E. Admiral Pl. (CD 2)

19. 23614 – Mark Capron, Wallace Design Collective
Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a Large Assembly and Entertainment Use
(greater than 250-person capacity) in the CH District (Sec. 15.020, Table 15-2)
Location: 909 W. 23rd St. (CD 2)

20. 23616 – Nathan Cross
Action Requested: Special Exception to expand a previously approved self-storage facility in the
CS district (Sec. 15.020, Sec.15.020)
Location: 2817 N. Peoria Ave. (CD 1)

21. 23617 – Harry Bjornberg
Action Requested: Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS-3 District
(45.031-D); Variance to allow the floor area of  detached accessory buildings to exceed 500
square feet and 40% of the floor area of the principal residential structure (Section 45.030-B);
Variance to allow more than 30% coverage by an Accessory Dwelling Unit in the rear setback in
the RS-3 District (Section 90.090-C); Variance to allow a detached Accessory Dwelling Unit to
exceed one story or 18 feet in height and to exceed 10 feet in height to the top of the top plate in
the rear setback (Section 90.090-C)
Location: 1520 S. St. Louis Ave. (CD 4)

OTHER BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS  

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

ADJOURNMENT  

Website: tulsaplanning.org  E-mail: planning@cityoftulsa.org

CD = Council District 

NOTE: If you require special accommodation pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, please notify 
Tulsa Planning Office at 918-596-7526. Exhibits, Petitions, Pictures, etc., presented to the Board of 
Adjustment may be received and deposited in case files to be maintained by the Tulsa Planning Office at 
Tulsa City Hall. All electronic devices must be silenced.  



 

 

 

 

Case Number: BOA-23557 
 
Hearing Date: 12/12/2023 (Continued from 
11/14/23 Hearing) 

 
Case Report Prepared by: 
 
Austin Chapman 
 

 
Owner and Applicant Information: 
 
Applicant: Lou Reynolds   
 
Property Owner: Independent School District No. 1 
 

 
Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a Library in the RS-3 District (Table 5.020, Table 5-2, Table 5-2.5); 
Variance to reduce the required 25-foot street setback in the RS-3 District (Sec. 5.030-A, Table 5-3) 
 
 
Location Map: 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Present Use: School     
 
Tract Size: 3.87 acres 
 
Location: 1110 E. 45 Pl. S. 
 
Present Zoning: RS-3 
 
 
Case History: 
 
08/08/23: First appearance on agenda, Board 
continued item until the next hearing.   
 
08/22/23: Board approved item in a vote of 3 yea’s 
(Stauffer, Barrientos, Wallace) and 1 abstention 
(Radney).  
 
08/30/23: Notice of appeal of this case was filed 
with the Board of Adjustment staff.  
 
09/12/23: Stauffer motioned to reconsider item at 
the 9/26 Hearing, all 3 Board member present voted 
in favor of reconsideration (Stauffer, Radney, and 
Bond).   
 
09/26/23: Board move to continue reconsideration 
until 11/09/23 on advice of City of Tulsa Legal 
Counsel.   
 
11/14/23: Board moved to continue reconsideration 
until 12/12/23 on advice of City of Tulsa Legal 
Counsel.   
 

 
 

7.1

Tulsa 
Board of Adjustment 

E 76th St N uwan:o 

V 
z Turley 

W 5-ln-J StN 

District 1 
District J CetooH 

E T HI 

r,f 

ngs District 4 

District 6 
Districts 

• District9 
Al 

Distritt 7 
E 111 

Broken Arrow 

Jenk.s District 8 
O neta 

I: 12ht $1 S 



E 49TH ST S

E 45TH PL S

S
 M

A
D

IS
O

N
 P

L

S
 D

E
T

R
O

IT
 A

V
E

E 43RD ST S

E 46TH ST S

E 45TH CT S

E 48TH ST S

S
 B

O
S

T
O

N
 P

L

E 47TH ST S

S
 N

O
R

F
O

L
K

 A
V

E

E 44TH ST S

E 45TH ST S

S
 C

IN
C

IN
N

A
T

I A
V

E

E 48TH PL S

E 43RD PL S

S
 O

W
A

S
S

O
 A

V
E

S
 Q

U
IN

C
Y

 A
V

E

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

E 44TH PL S

S
 M

A
D

IS
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 N

O
R

F
O

L
K

 A
V

E

S
 M

A
D

IS
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

S
 O

W
A

S
S

O
 A

V
E

S
 D

E
T

R
O

IT
 A

V
E

E 43RD ST S

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

E 48TH ST S

S
 C

IN
C

IN
N

A
T

I A
V

E

E 48TH PL S

E 45TH PL S

E 46TH ST S

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

E 42ND PL S

S
 P

E
O

R
IA

 A
V

E

19-12 25

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23557 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely

align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

SUBJECT TRACT

7.2
D 



E 49TH ST S

E 45TH PL S

S
 M

A
D

IS
O

N
 P

L

S
 D

E
T

R
O

IT
 A

V
E

E 43RD ST S

E 46TH ST S

E 45TH CT S

E 48TH ST S

E 43RD CT S

S
 B

O
S

T
O

N
 P

L

E 47TH ST S

S
 N

O
R

F
O

L
K

 A
V

E

E 44TH ST S

E 45TH ST S

S
 C

IN
C

IN
N

A
T

I A
V

E

E 48TH PL S

E 43RD PL S

S
 O

W
A

S
S

O
 A

V
E

S
 Q

U
IN

C
Y

 A
V

E

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

E 44TH PL S

S
 M

A
D

IS
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 N

O
R

F
O

L
K

 A
V

E

S
 M

A
D

IS
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

S
 O

W
A

S
S

O
 A

V
E

S
 D

E
T

R
O

IT
 A

V
E

E 43RD ST S

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

E 48TH ST S

S
 C

IN
C

IN
N

A
T

I A
V

E

E 48TH PL S

E 45TH PL S

E 46TH ST S

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

E 42ND PL S

PUD-541

PUD-541B

PUD-837

PUD-814

PUD-541A

RS-3

RS-3

CS

CS

IM

CH

RS-3

PK

RM-2

CH
CH

CS

OL

RT

RM-2

CS

CH

CG

CH

RM-1

RM-2

RM-2

CH

CS
RM-2

RM-1

RM-2

MX1-V-U
MX1-V-55

S
 P

E
O

R
IA

 A
V

E

19-12 25

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23557

SUBJECT TRACT

7.3

- I I - I I I I I I I - - 0:: .. ! 
- -,____ 

- -,____ -- -ttto , -
" _I - - -

-
- ,____ - ,------ .....,, - ... ..... ,. -- - ,-----

I \ Il lJU -
f-- - . . 

- ! t-- I ~r=- ---- --
---

I 
-

~~ - -I ~ - = ~ 
,____ = ~ 

I 

.. ~. - LJ //1 1· - ~ ,J-
~ ~ - I = ~ 

I I \;=:7 / = =n ' 
.._ .I. 

I \ r-----, - . , ... --
lJ I 

-

1_··1-- -

/ _ -

L I -
-

I 
I I -

I 
J _ I I I I I I I ? - - -

~ J1I ~ -

i I I I 
I r----- -

~ -
- -
,--- -

H 
...____ 

'- -
,--- -

"' - '- L 

rr= - - - - r ,---

~ I 
- .- - .. - - -

- -- -,._ - ~ 

I f 
t- -

i-- -- _, ~ 

i-- ~fuB= t- -
i-- .___ )t L ___ ,._ .___ . 

. -
t- -

- I 
,._ - t--- - • -- ----- -

-----
~ -

111 ~ "-- - . - .___ f---j )--
'-..-' 

.., 

I I I I 
I . ......, r-- 1 • 

I I - - 1L 1....1. ~j - -- ' - I -- - I 
-

I - -
f- - -- -f- - -- -

I 
~ - - , -- ,. - ; [ ~ 

-
f- -- I. • 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 9225  Case Number: BOA-23557 
CD: 9

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 

APPLICANT: Lou Reynolds 

ACTION REQUESTED: Special Exception to permit a Library in the RS-3 District (Table 5.020, Table 5-2, Table 5-
2.5); Variance to reduce the required 25-foot street setback in the RS-3 District (Sec. 5.030-A, Table 5-3) 

LOCATION: 1110 E 45 PL S ZONED: RS-3 

PRESENT USE: School  TRACT SIZE: 168591.83 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: See attached. 

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:   

Subject property: 

BOA-21380; On 02.28.12 the Board approved a Variance to permit a digital sign to have non-constant light and a 
Variance to permit a digital sign within 200-feet of a residential district.   

BOA-12091; On 08.19.82 the Board approved a Special Exception to permit a daycare use accessory to Wright 
Elementary School.  

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as part of a “Neighborhood”.  

Neighborhoods are “Mostly Residential Uses” which includes detached, missing middle, and multi-dwelling unit 
housing types. Churches, schools, and other low-intensity uses that support residents’ daily needs are often 
acceptable, particularly for properties abutting Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional Center land use areas. 
Multi-dwelling unit housing that takes access off of an arterial is considered Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional 
Center. If a multi-dwelling unit housing property takes access off of a lower-order street separated from the arterial, 
then it would be considered Neighborhood.   

STATEMENT OF HARDSHIP: See attached exhibits.  

STAFF ANALYSIS:  The applicant is requesting a Special Exception to permit a Library in the RS-3 District (Table 
5.020, Table 5-2, Table 5-2.5);  

and a Variance to reduce the required 25-foot street setback in the RS-3 District (Sec. 5.030-A, Table 5-3): 

7.4

35.040-1 Library or Cultural Exhibit 
Museum-li ke preservation and exhib ition of objects in one or more of the arts and 
sc iences, ga llery exhibition of works of art or library col lections of boo ks, 
manuscripts and sim ilar mater ia ls fo r study and read ing. Includes aq uar iums and 
planetari ums. 



Applicant is requesting to reduce the street setback from 25-feet to 15-feet for non-arterial streets. 

Facts staff finds favorable for variance request:  

 The presence of the storm easement on the site as identified on the property does present a physical
limitation of the building area of the site.

Facts Staff find unfavorable for the variance request: 
 None.

SAMPLE MOTION:  

Special Exception:  

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a  Special Exception to permit a Library in the RS-3 District (Table 5.020, Table 
5-2, Table 5-2.5);

 Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

 Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code and 
will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

Variance:  

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a ___________________________ 

 Finding the hardship(s) to be________________________________.

 Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

 Subject to the following conditions ___________________________.

In granting the Variance the Board finds that the following facts, favorable to the property owner, have been 
established:  

a. That the physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of the subject property would result in
unnecessary hardships or practical difficulties for the property owner, as distinguished from a mere
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out;

b. That literal enforcement of the subject zoning code provision is not necessary to achieve the provision’s
intended purpose;

c. That the conditions leading to the need of the requested variance are unique to the subject property and
not applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;

7.5

Table 5-3: R District Lot and Building Regulations 

Regu lations RE I RS-1 I RS-2 I RS-3 I RS-4 I RS-5 I RD I RT I RM-0 I RM-1 I RM-2 I RM -3 I RMH 
Min. Bui lding Setbacks (ft.) 

Street [3] 
Arte ria l or fwy service rd . 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 10 10 10 10 35 
other streets 35 35 30 251 20 20 25 10 10 10 10 10 25 

Side (interior) [4] 15 5 5 5 5 5 5 5[5] 5[6] 5[6] 5[6] 5[7] 10 
Rea r [4] 25 25 25 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 10 20 15 



REVISED 9/18/2023 

d. That the alleged practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship was not created or self-imposed by the
current property owner;

e. That the variance to be granted is the minimum variance that will afford relief;

f. That the variance to be granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood in which the
subject property is located, nor substantially or permanently impair use or development of adjacent property;
and

g. That the variance to be granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the
purposes, spirit, and intent of this zoning code or the comprehensive plan.”

7.6



REVISED 9/18/2023 

Subject Property 

7.7

\ 



7.8

Exhibit "A" 

A tract of land located in the City of Tulsa, Tulsa County, State of Oklahoma, more particularly 
described as follows, to-wit: 

The East 995 feet of the South 474 feet of the Annie May Grant Tract "B" of the L.J.F. Rooney 
Survey of Annie May Grant (nee Abdo) and Harry N. Abdo lands in Section 25, Township 19 
North, Range 12 East, according to the recorded plat thereof, the East boundary thereof being the 
center of the Section line between said Section 25, T-19-N, R-12-E, and Section 30 T-19-N, R-13-
E; and the East 995 feet of the Annie May Grant Tract "C" of the L.J.F. Rooney Survey of Annie 
May Grant (nee Abdo) and Harry N. Abdo lands in Section 25, Township 19 North, Range 12 
East, according to the recorded plat thereof, the East boundary thereof being the center of the 
Section line between said Section 25, T-19-N, R-12-E, and Section 30, T-19-N, R-13-E, LESS a 
tract of ground in the Southwest comer of the Annie May Grant "C" Tract (which is part of the 
N/2 of NE/4 of SE/4 of 25-19-12) specifically described as: Beginning at a point in the center of 
Section line on the East side of said Section 25 at the Southeast comer of the Annie May Grant 
"C" Tract, according to the recorded plat and running thence North in the center of said Section 
line along the East boundary of said Section 25 a distance of 160 feet, thence due West and parallel 
with the South boundary line of said Section 25 a distance of 170 feet, thence South and parallel 
with the East boundary line of said Section 25 a distance of 160 feet, thence East along the South 
boundary line of said Annie May Grant "C" Tract a distance of 170 feet to the Point of Beginning. 



7.9

Exhibit "B" 

The Applicant requests (1) a Special Exception pursuant to Table 5-2 of the Tulsa Zoning 

Code (the "Code'') to permit a Library in the RS-3 district; and (2) a Variance to reduce the 

minimum non-arterial street setback from 25 feet to 15 feet, all for property located at 1110 E. 45th 

Place S. (the "Property"). 

The Property is comprised of approximately 9 acres, with Collegiate Hall, a public charter 

school, located on the northern half of the Property. The Tulsa City-County Library Commission 

desires to build a new Brookside Library at the southwest comer of the Property. A Conceptual 

Site Plan of the new library facility is attached hereto. Currently, Brookside Library is located just 

north of the Property, across E. 45th Place. The proposed 15,000 SF library will be a much needed 

upgrade to the current 7,000 SF library built in 1970. 

Given the existence of a library in this neighborhood just a couple of blocks away for over 

50 years, the proposed Library use will not be injurious to the neighborhood and the Special 

Exception is in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code. 

The RS-3 zoning district requires a 25 foot building setback from non-arterial streets. Due 

to an existing storm sewer easement crossing the northern portion of the Property, the location of 

the proposed Library is confined to the area of the Property to the south of the easement. In order 

to accommodate the building on the site, the Applicant requests a Variance to reduce the 25 foot 

street setback to 15 feet. 

Taking into account the existing 50 feet of right-of-way of E. 47lh Street, the Library 

building will be setback 65 feet from the residential property boundary to the south and 85 feet 

from the nearest residential building wall to the south. Accordingly, the literal enforcement of the 

setback established by the Code is not necessary to achieve its intended purpose and the Variance 

will not impair the use of the adjacent property or the spirit and intent of the Code. 



My Library, Our Future
May 17, 2023

Zoning Discussion 1

10

17

10

11 12

18

78

Sidewalk Extending North

Walking Trail on TPS and City Easement

Drive-Thru Book Service

Requesting 15’ Setback

TCCL Property Line

New TPS Fence Line

15,000sf

120” Storm Sewer Easement

7.10
Tulsa City-County 

aRY 

I 
I 

I 

'1 i 
i ) 
I I 

I I 

I 

CH B-N46°:.::::~::i:;: I ,--
1 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 
I 
I 

"' 

I : e 
lb-~,.--lb..a..b.;;;J.--..b.b.-.b==l,.....b---l-~--==-.b.--.d- ¼ =-~-- 1 I e 

~<:;' 

I i 
II ' ,. :. ,. 
:• ,. 
:• ,, 

1-story 
Brick Building 

UNPLAT 
Owner: independent 

APN:9922592 

120" storm Pipe-
Per Third Party Locate -~ 

., 
\", 
\', 

{l_r 
:-------

- ' -

Asphalt Paving 

----------------7 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

,. 
'• I• :, ,. ,. 
\• ,. 
:, ,. 
:• ,. 
:: 
i 
• 
• • 
i 

' • • 

2-Story 
Brick Building 

I KKT 
WWW. KKT ARCHITECTS.COM 

ARCHITECTURE 

INTERIORS 

ENGINEERING 



7.11

,., 

I 
J 

"it!i4¼•iil#:it#iffiiit;tEiil 

... -=-= ------ --o -·-·.G 

G 

F. 46Clt PLACE 

Re ueslin 15' Setback 

My Library. Our Future 
Moy 17, 2023 

Zoning Discussion 

............ 

L 

( 

, .... --~·......., 

,..., 
...... ~ 

■fl•&1t•Huii4¼414•H4,,t4,ll 

■tMii1#4,i4¥1-i,t¥ 

TCCL Pro ert Line 

Drive-Thru Book Service 

r&ll!fMiffllffliliii•lti•tiilD4•H¥i,,1431 

(((KKT I 



7.12

---

,_....,, 
'I 

··a:. . 

. "' _,r!l-t'-:' 
t:. 

My Library, Our Future 
Moy 17, 2023 

Zoning Discussion 

/ 

(((KKT I 



BOA-23557

7.13

Philip J. Eller 
Kevin H. Wylie 
R. Louis Reynolds 
Daniel C. Cupps 
Andrew A. Shank 
Shanann Pinkham Passley 
Mac D. Finlayson 
Steven P. Flowers 
Kenneth E. Crump, Jr. 
Sloane Ryan Lile 
Nathalie M. Cornett 
Natalie J. Marra 
Jacob W. Purdum 

Of Counsel 
Donald L. Detrich, Retired 
Jerry M. Snider 
Katherine Saunders, PLC 
Heidi L. Shadid 
Joshua M. Tietsort 

Antony & Najat Abdo 
2020 Revocable Trust 
7726 S. 69th East Ave. 
Tulsa, OK 74133-3414 

Eller~ ch 
A Professional Corporation 

July 26, 2023 

Telephone 
(918) 747-8900 

Toll Free 
(866) 54 7-8900 

Facsimile 
(918) 747-2665 

Writer's Direct Line 
(918) 392-9400 

Writer's Direct Fax 
(918) 392-9406 
Writer's E-Mail 

rlreynolds@ellerdetrich.com 

Re: Brookside Library, 1110 E. 45th Place South, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74105 
Board of Adjustment Case No. BOA-23557 

Dear Mr. and Ms. Abdo: 

If you have not already, you will be receiving a notice in the mail from the Tulsa Planning 
Office regarding our application for Case No. BOA-23557, which will be heard by the City of 
Tulsa Board of Adjustment on Wednesday, August 8, 2023, at 1 :00 p.m. 

The Tulsa City-County Library Commission is in the design process for a new Brookside 
Library facility. The existing Brookside Library, on the north side of 45th Place, was built over 
fifty years ago in 1970 and, with approximately 7,000 square feet, simply does not have the space 
or amenities of a modem library. 

The new Brookside Library facility is proposed to be built on the south side of Collegiate 
Hall, on South Madison Place. The new building on Madison will be approximately 15,000 square 
feet and in addition to a larger book selection, will have meeting areas, computers and multi-media 
resources available to the public. 

www.El lerDetrich.com 
2727 East 21'1 Street, Suite 200, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74114-3533 



7.14

July 26, 2023 
Page 2 

Eller~ ch 
A Professional Corporation 

The purpose of this Board of Adjustment application is for a Special Exception for the 
library use to be in a residential district and, due to a large storm sewer bisecting the Property, 
a Variance to reduce the street setback by 10 feet (from 25 feet to 15 feet) along E. 46th Place. 
Attached to this letter are a Conceptual Site Plan and Building Elevation that will be provided to 
the Board. 

We are excited for the new Brookside Library and think it will be a wonderful, much 
needed upgrade for the community and you, as its neighbors. If you have any questions about the 
project, please do not hesitate to call me at (918) 747-8900. 

Enclosure 

1:/09.1020.02/Neighbor Letters (2023.07.26) 

Yours very truly, 

ELLER & DETRICH 
A Professional Corporation 

for Tulsa-City County Library Commission 



7.15

M$M1iiMM■l,M 
, l 

B11!1!1ffi1 

TCCL Property Line 

Driv"'~Thru B:)olc 5-=rvice 

Watkin Trail on TPS and Ci Easement 

E." 46th .Pl.ACE 

Re ues11n - 15' Setback E9 

( l(KT I 



7.16

=::==:==, 

f(KKT I 
'' ,1,. ., •. ,· ,,., 

fl'. 3 



From: Jonathan Pinkey
To: Chapman, Austin
Subject: BOA-23557 New Brookside Library Being Planned
Date: Monday, August 7, 2023 5:47:58 AM

Greetings,

I am writing regarding Case BOA-23557 and the Brookside Library’s
planned new location. I wrote an earlier letter of concern to the
Tulsa Library. Since writing that letter, I have spoken with some
nearby residents. I have heard concerns that the project is
unnecessary (regardless, the planned residential location seems very
poor, all things considered). I have heard some strong concerns about
the loss of green space. The large field has been in use for
recreation and relaxation by many community members for decades (and
would continue to be if left intact). Its size should not be
substantially diminished, as it will be if this project proceeds. I
have also become aware of concerns about this project contributing to
the unnecessary existence of what the EPA calls a “heat island” in our
neighborhood, which seems quite a serious consideration. There are
other concerns as well. I agree with the statement that to grant the
Special Exception/variance would do more harm than good for the local
community. It seems that this project needs serious reconsideration.

Best wishes,

Jonathan Pinkey

4754 S Boston PL
Tulsa OK 74105-4418

P.S. Why not move the library somewhere else, perhaps on Peoria?
(Possibly where the old Arby’s was—there is a big field behind it that
could provide plenty of parking. There are other possible locations
that might be considered as well.)
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not reply, forward, click links, or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Please report using the Phish Alert button
in the Outlook Desktop Client if this message contains potentially unsafe content.

7.17

mailto:jrpinkey@gmail.com
mailto:achapman@cityoftulsa.org


From: Kelsey Royce
To: Chapman, Austin
Subject: Request for Continuance BOA-23557
Date: Friday, July 28, 2023 4:15:57 PM

Good afternoon,

Per our conversation, I am requesting a continuance for BOA-23557 which is scheduled for August 8,
2023. A continuance is appropriate for the reason that it coincides with an election and would overburden
residents who might have to make a choice between the two for reasons of personal or work-related
obligations. 

To date, no mail has been received notifying those of us living within 300 feet (or distance otherwise
specified by law) that a variance has been requested for this project. I would also ask that a public hearing
be held so that those of us who have concerns may bring them before the body that governs these
changes. 

If there are any other steps to be taken in order to ensure that affected residents are able to engage and
fully participate in this process, please advise. 

Regards,

Kelsey Royce
918-955-5007

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not reply, forward, click links, or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Please report using the Phish Alert
button in the Outlook Desktop Client if this message contains potentially unsafe content.

7.18

mailto:kelseylroyce@gmail.com
mailto:achapman@cityoftulsa.org


From: Harry Potter
To: Tulsa Planning Office
Subject: Case No. BOA-23557 - Opposition to Request for Special Exception and Variance
Date: Monday, August 21, 2023 6:51:17 PM

Members of the Board,

I am a resident of the affected neighborhood and strongly oppose granting the applicant’s request in Case No. BOA-
23557. I urge the Board to deny the requested special exception and variance because it is a commercial endeavor
that is inappropriate for our quiet neighborhood and would be deleterious to our community.

Sincerely, Anique Swanson

Sent from my iPhone
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not reply, forward, click links, or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Please report using the Phish Alert button
in the Outlook Desktop Client if this message contains potentially unsafe content.

7.19

mailto:aniqueswanson@gmail.com
mailto:Planning@cityoftulsa.org


From: M Haddad
To: Tulsa Planning Office
Subject: Case#BOA-23557
Date: Monday, August 21, 2023 10:42:06 PM

We are the owners of property located within 300 ft of the proposed Brookside Library. We
strongly oppose this proposal and urge the BOA to deny the applicant’s request. 

 As we understand it, there are two requests that the library is making of the BOA:
1) to be granted a special exception
2) to be granted a variance in the event that the exception is approved.

No variance can be granted.

The criteria for BOA approval of an exception are: 

1) the exception will be in harmony with the spirit of the zoning code to the current
residential zoning (RS-3)

2) it will not harm community or public welfare

We contend that the exception is not in harmony and will harm us. Therefore, an exception
and resultant variance must be denied. 

There is no proof that the library needs an “upgrade” and the Library Commission, as a
fiduciary,  must give the public evidence of such need.

We believe in and support the public library system !  As residents of the Brookside area, as
well as owners of numerous properties in same neighborhood (that we pay real estate taxes
on, and, in turn, support the library’s existence), we want a safe and healthy environment for
our neighborhood that protects the community’s right to quiet enjoyment.

The applicant’s proposal for a special exemption and the request for a variance that is to be
brought before the BOA on Tuesday (8/22/23) is incomplete, confusing, and unprofessional.

We oppose the proposal and urge the BOA to deny the Applicant’s request.

Sincerely,

Gary & Marianne Haddad
4128 S Norfolk Avenue
Tulsa, Ok 74105

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not reply, forward, click links, or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Please report using the Phish Alert
button in the Outlook Desktop Client if this message contains potentially unsafe content.

7.20

mailto:enterprisehaddad57@gmail.com
mailto:Planning@cityoftulsa.org


1

Chapman, Austin

From: callanhenrik@gmail.com
Sent: Monday, August 21, 2023 6:52 PM
To: Tulsa Planning Office
Subject: Case No. BOA-23557 - Opposition to Request for Special Exception and Variance 

Members of the Board, 

I am a resident of the affected neighborhood and strongly oppose gran ng the applicant’s request in Case No. BOA‐
23557. I urge the Board to deny the requested special excep on and variance because it is a commercial endeavor that is 
inappropriate for our quiet neighborhood and would be deleterious to our community. 

Sincerely, Callan Swanson 

Sent from my iPhone 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organiza on. Do not reply, forward, click links, or open a achments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Please report using the Phish Alert bu on in the Outlook 
Desktop Client if this message contains poten ally unsafe content. 

7.21



1

Chapman, Austin

From: Cherry swanson <cherlei1969@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, August 21, 2023 6:52 PM
To: Tulsa Planning Office
Subject: Case No. BOA-23557 - Opposition to Request for Special Exception and Variance 

ChMembers of the Board, 

I am a resident of the affected neighborhood and strongly oppose gran ng the applicant’s request in Case No. BOA‐
23557. I urge the Board to deny the requested special excep on and variance because it is a commercial endeavor that is 
inappropriate for our quiet neighborhood and would be deleterious to our community. 

Sincerely, cherry Swanson 

Sent from my iPhone 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organiza on. Do not reply, forward, click links, or open a achments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Please report using the Phish Alert bu on in the Outlook 
Desktop Client if this message contains poten ally unsafe content. 

7.22



August 22, 2023 

1 | P a g e

QUESTIONS FROM OUR NEIGHBORHOOD COMMUNITY

RE: BOA- 23557 Proposed Change to Applicable Code and Easement Minimum for 15,000 Sq Ft Library 
in Predominantly Single-family Neighborhood without Requisite Impact Studies.  

1) The proposed building is a very large 15,000 square feet and requests setback of 15 feet instead of
existing legal minimum of 25 feet. To accommodate the storm easement, the proposed setback is
designated for the side and rear portions of the building, which are adjacent to multi-family dwellings.

1.1) Does this imperil adjacent buildings, and residents of those buildings, due to proximity in 
case of fire or emergency event?  

1.2) What remedies exist in the case of fire, or emergency event? How will a fire truck and other 
emergency vehicles access the side and back of building with such limited space to navigate or 
turn?   

2) This proposed new 15,000 square foot library is part of a developed parcel which houses a Charter
School and serves our most vulnerable and treasured community members- our children. 2.1) Are we
placing them at risk in the event of fire or, God forbid, armed hostility, by reducing clear and navigable
access by emergency vehicles to all parts of the building?

2.2) Are there security risks and vulnerabilities due to the reduced easement of minimum 25 
feet to proposed 15 feet?  

3) Documents ask if there are any, “Facts staff find unfavorable,” and in advance of tomorrow’s hearing
expressly answer, “None.”

3.1) Where are the surveys of traffic flow, studies which identify impacts upon neighborhood 
residents, adjoining properties and existing infrastructure (i.e., roads, sewer, electrical, 
technology, etc.)?   

3.2) Where are the studies and findings, including impacts upon community and taxpayers due 
to increased use and consumption of resources, as well as how hours of operation and after-
hours special events may negatively impact individuals and families in a neighborhood 
predominantly of pre-existing single-family dwellings?   

3.3) Will there be disruption of our quiet, tranquil neighborhood and how will it negatively affect 
our property values as tax paying homeowners?   

3.4) If there are studies, who, or which company, conducted them? 

3.5) Were there any Environmental Impact Reports requested, conducted and/or filed for this 
proposed use of the soccer and playground parcel?  

3.6) Were impacts upon the loss of carbon-processing ancestral oaks and trees of large diameter 
identified and considered?  

3.7) Were the impacts and devastation of habitat of resident and protected wildlife identified or 
considered? If so, how?  

7.23



August 22, 2023 

2 | P a g e

3.8) Most importantly, were the devastating impacts upon our most treasured community 
members - our children - identified and considered? When so many children in the world do not 
have a safe place, or chance, to play, breathe clean air and interact with God’s Creation, why 
would we take one that already exists and is beloved here in Tulsa?  

3.9) What were the methodologies, criteria, analysis and dates of any studies? 

4. Was there Notice of Proposed Changes to Easement?

4.1) If so, how was legal Notice given and when? 

4.2) Was each property owner and resident within the adjoining buildings and communities 
given Notice or asked how the new library would affect them positively or negatively? 

7.24



August 22, 2023 

3 | P a g e

TRAFFIC ON MADISON PLACE AFTERSCHOOL

7.25



August 22, 2023 

4 | P a g e

STREET VARIOUSLY NAMED BY APPLICANT 47th & 46th PL 

7.26



From: Jim Diacon
To: Tulsa Planning Office
Cc: Chapman, Austin
Subject: BOA-23557 New Library Proposed for 1110 E. 45th Place, Tulsa
Date: Friday, August 18, 2023 3:05:46 PM
Attachments: preview.png

BOA-23557
PDF Document · 9.1 MB

I own the apartments at 4611-4623 S. Madison Place.  My property is located across the
alley/46th Place to the south of the proposed location for the new library.

I am opposed to the applications to both allow from he library to be build and to reduce
the setback from he the street from 25 to 15 feet.

Reasons are:
-This large commercial building will be huge change to the look and feel to what is now a
residential neighborhood.  It is not an appropriate use of the space.
-We purchased the property assuming that the open green space to the north would be
protected by zoning requirements.  The current park-like setting is a big draw for our tenants.
-What will basically be a two story building will loom over our property, especially if it
allowed to be built 10 feet closer to the street than what is normal.
-Added car and foot traffic is bound to create a nuisance for all that live in the neighborhood,
especially those adjacent to the property.
-In its current from, 46th Place is basically an alley; not a real street.  There is no way that it
can handle the extra curb cuts and traffic in existing form.
-According the plan, the curb cut located at the SE corner of the new building will be
primarily used by trucks for deliveries and trash collection.  That could cause extra noise and
disruption for my tenants.
-Covering the current green space with a building and parking is bound to lead to water run-
off problems for all adjacent property owners.
-If allowed, the project has the potential to REDUCE my property value.

7.27

&.-IM'111DE..<II~ -& 

""'""'"~'~ 

6.1 

mailto:jdiacon@me.com
mailto:Planning@cityoftulsa.org
mailto:achapman@cityoftulsa.org
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftulsaplanning.org%2Fcityboa%2Fagendas%2Fexhibits%2FBOA-23557.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Cachapman%40cityoftulsa.org%7Ccb3f5165f0c446be9d8908dba026503b%7C79d58ae020484d8c9c598b1b7dfb4204%7C0%7C0%7C638279859457811665%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uzlmWy4QlUZy5061%2BsUqzOPfOr%2BplldADJIlMv91N48%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftulsaplanning.org%2Fcityboa%2Fagendas%2Fexhibits%2FBOA-23557.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Cachapman%40cityoftulsa.org%7Ccb3f5165f0c446be9d8908dba026503b%7C79d58ae020484d8c9c598b1b7dfb4204%7C0%7C0%7C638279859457811665%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uzlmWy4QlUZy5061%2BsUqzOPfOr%2BplldADJIlMv91N48%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftulsaplanning.org%2Fcityboa%2Fagendas%2Fexhibits%2FBOA-23557.pdf&data=05%7C01%7Cachapman%40cityoftulsa.org%7Ccb3f5165f0c446be9d8908dba026503b%7C79d58ae020484d8c9c598b1b7dfb4204%7C0%7C0%7C638279859457811665%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uzlmWy4QlUZy5061%2BsUqzOPfOr%2BplldADJIlMv91N48%3D&reserved=0



At a minimum, if the project is allowed to move forward, we would expect that the alley on
the south perimeter (46th PL) be totally brought up to current standards.  This would require
removal of the existing material, re-grading, addition of curbs and gutters, curb cuts on the
south side to provide access to my tenant parking, etc.  All of the cost of improving the alley
into a real street should be borne by the project/library system.

Thanks for your time.  Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have questions.

Jim Diacon
Owner and Managing Member
JNP, LLC

Jim Diacon
jdiacon@me.com
918-688-8950

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not reply, forward, click links, or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Please report using the Phish Alert
button in the Outlook Desktop Client if this message contains potentially unsafe content.

7.28



From: Evan Inman
To: Tulsa Planning Office
Subject: Case No. BOA-23557 - Opposition to Request for Special Exception and Variance
Date: Sunday, August 20, 2023 11:31:05 AM

Members of the Board,

I am a resident of the affected neighborhood and strongly oppose granting the applicant’s
request in Case No. BOA-23557. I urge the Board to deny the requested special exception and
variance because it is a commercial endeavor that is inappropriate for our quiet neighborhood
and would be deleterious to our community. 

Sincerely,
Evan Inman

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not reply, forward, click links, or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Please report using the Phish Alert
button in the Outlook Desktop Client if this message contains potentially unsafe content.

7.29

mailto:evanjinman@gmail.com
mailto:Planning@cityoftulsa.org


From: Mary C
To: Tulsa Planning Office
Subject: Case No. BOA-23557 - Opposition to Request for Special Exception and Variance
Date: Sunday, August 20, 2023 7:50:15 PM

Members of the Board,

I am a resident of the affected neighborhood and strongly oppose granting the applicant’s
request in Case No. BOA-23557. I urge the Board to deny the requested special exception and
variance because it is a commercial endeavor that is inappropriate for our quiet neighborhood
and would be deleterious to our community.  I have lived across the street from the
school/greenspace since 1988 and the greenspace has been used and enjoyed by countless
numbers of Tulsa residents to exercise their dogs, meet for ball practice and basketball and
walk the perimeter for exercise.  The greenspace is even a stop for the local geese on their way
to the Arkansas River.   I would like to see these activities continue in our little neighborhood. 
 I think it's important to the residents' overall enjoyment with the area of town we live in.

Thank you,

Mary Campbell
331 East 45th Court
Tulsa, OK 74105

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not reply, forward, click links, or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Please report using the Phish Alert
button in the Outlook Desktop Client if this message contains potentially unsafe content.

7.30

mailto:blondiec331@gmail.com
mailto:Planning@cityoftulsa.org


1

Chapman, Austin

From: Katie Roberts <katieblue69@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, August 21, 2023 4:39 PM
To: Tulsa Planning Office
Subject: Case BOA-23557

Hello. I oppose this case! We use that are to play, walk and socialize. Please do not make it a parking lot!  
Sincerely 
Katera Roberts 
918‐636‐5393 
4762 S Boston Pl 
Tulsa OK 74105 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not reply, forward, click links, or open attachments unless you 
recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Please report using the Phish Alert button in the Outlook Desktop Client if this 
message contains potentially unsafe content. 

7.31

I 



From: Luka Gogibedashvili
To: Tulsa Planning Office; Chapman, Austin; boa@incog.org
Subject: A letter regarding case 23557
Date: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 10:06:11 AM

Date: 8/22/2023

Case No. BOA - 23557

Name: Luka Gogibedashvili

Address: 4712 South Boston Avenue, Tulsa, OK, 74105

Contact Information: 202-227-7902; Email: lukagog@gmail.com

To the distinguished board members of Tulsa City Hall,

My name is Luka Gogibedashvili, I am a resident near the Collegiate Hall and the public park of the
same, located at the intersection of S. Madison Pl and E 45th PL.

In this letter I would like to briefly convey my interest and reasoning in favor of keeping the public
green space for the use of the local community. I do ask that the interests of residents be considered
when ruling regarding the starting of a construction project that would pave away the lovely green
space that has become so dear to us.

 My wife, April Elise Gordon, and I visit the park every day, we have met and have become friends
with people that also frequent the park. I see residents there that bring their children to play in the
field and the playgrounds, I regularly see my former student playing basketball with his friends on
the basketball court, a girls’ soccer team uses the property to train for their games. I know people
that have met, become friends, and started dating, all from meeting at this park. Many people bring
their dogs, and the latter have formed a cheerful community of their own. The passers-by say hello
and stop by for a chat, exchanging local news and to complain about the weather.

Speaking of the weather, the greenery acts as a heat sink, which is a welcome reprieve in hot
Oklahoma summers. While the construction, which would bring even more cement than the area
already has, would do the opposite. The green space does also, as one would imagine, serve as a
failsafe against flooding, a benefit that extends far beyond the immediate vicinity of the surrounding
houses.

As for the construction of the library itself, we welcome it, but surely an alternative location could be
found that is not as important for the mental, physical, and social well-being of the community.

I regret that my work does not let me attend the hearing on August 22nd, 13:00, and I have to send
this letter instead, I hope it will find you well. I implore you to consider the interests of the
community and not deprive us of a public space that we use daily.

Respectfully Yours,

7.32

mailto:lukagog@gmail.com
mailto:Planning@cityoftulsa.org
mailto:achapman@cityoftulsa.org
mailto:boa@incog.org
mailto:lukagog@gmail.com


Luka Gogibedashvili

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not reply, forward, click links, or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. Please report using the Phish Alert
button in the Outlook Desktop Client if this message contains potentially unsafe content.

7.33



7.34

BOA Case No. 23557 
August 22, 2023 

Looking North from S,W Corner 
' I 



7.35

BOA Case No. 23557 
August 22, 2023 

Looking North from NW Corner 



7.36

BOA Case No. 23557 
August 22, 2023 

Looking East from NW Corner 



7.37

August 22, 2023 
Looking South from NW Corner 



7.38

August 22, 2023 
Looking East from SW Corner 

t 
l 



7.39

----

----

BOA Case No. 23557 
August 22, 2023 

Looking South from SE Corner 



7.40

BOA Case No. 23557 
August 22, 2023 

Christ the King Food Pantry 



Library Building

School Building

Library Parking

S. Madison Pl.

School and Brookside Library Sites

All playground 
equipment remains

New sidewalk to extend and 
connect to the school

Existing school fence line to Remain 
(pink dotted lines)

New Soccer Goals and baseball backstop 
added to school propertyAdjusted Fence LineExisting walking trail is 

maintained and becomes 
publicly accessible (no longer 

behind the school’s fence)

7.41



My Library, Our Future
May 17, 2023

Zoning Discussion 1

10

17

10

11 12

18

78

Sidewalk Extending North

Walking Trail on TPS and City Easement

Drive-Thru Book Service

Requesting 15’ Setback

TCCL Property Line

New TPS Fence Line

15,000sf

120” Storm Sewer Easement

7.42
Tulsa City-County 

aRY 

I 
I 

I 

'1 i 
i ) 
I I 

I I 

I 

CH B-N46°:.::::~::i:;: I ,--
1 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 
I 
I 

"' 

I : e 
lb-~,.--lb..a..b.;;;J.--..b.b.-.b==l,.....b---l-~--==-.b.--.d- ¼ =-~-- 1 I e 

~<:;' 

I i 
II ' ,. :. ,. 
:• ,. 
:• ,, 

1-story 
Brick Building 

UNPLAT 
Owner: independent 

APN:9922592 

120" storm Pipe-
Per Third Party Locate -~ 

., 
\", 
\', 

{l_r 
:-------

- ' -

Asphalt Paving 

----------------7 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

,. 
'• I• :, ,. ,. 
\• ,. 
:, ,. 
:• ,. 
:: 
i 
• 
• • 
i 

' • • 

2-Story 
Brick Building 

I KKT 
WWW. KKT ARCHITECTS.COM 

ARCHITECTURE 

INTERIORS 

ENGINEERING 



My Library, Our Future
May 17, 2023

Zoning Discussion 3

7.43

~--

:. ~~- -~· 

- --

y-County 

RY ~ KKT 
www.U,TARCHITECl$,C0M 

ARCHITECIURE 

IHIEtlORS 

ENG I HEER I HG 



My Library, Our Future
May 17, 2023

Zoning Discussion 4

7.44

-

y-County 

RY ~ KKT 
www.U,TARCHITECl$,C0M 

ARCHITECIURE 

IHIEtlORS 

ENG I HEER I HG 



7.45

Th( c; C:iYLASh ~v\_,-l-cs . no h c-e O f \ vrt -0vi + ·{0 

A-p pe 0vl th-e decL <;,c bv---. o ( tu..e 6 otJvt d. 1:i 
fr cl.J u.,s {-m ·en t C c d-'j o ·f T U£u,\_ ') 6 o iq - 2 ~ s s t--

(-} IA 3 ~LS+ '2 2 1 ·2, O 2 3 
7 

-+o '1) i s ~Y L ct' CoLL-V--t . C. \} -- Zoi ':)-- I % o 9 

S -e p + . l I z O 2- '3 

I~ t ' '-{S ri--, (:;-\ . 

C . .. - : - ., 

c· . . 

FILED 

CrTY OF n.JLSA BQA.RO OF J>DJUSThENT 

DATE:. TIME: Lf :JLfCAM@y 

RECEIVED BY: ~ 

a.ERK OF 11-E EOAro. A ~ ~'(\'1aA.A 



7.46

• 11111111111111/l l~l lill !11111111/11111111111 /~ 1111 * 1 0 5 6 2 7 1 9 5 5 * • 
IN AND FOR THE DISTRICT COURT OF TULSA COUNTY 

STATE OF OKLAHOMA j 1S
1
TRICT COURT 

L E D 
AUG ,312023 

KELSEY ROYCE and Others, Home 

Owners and Residents 

Petitioners, 

Vs. 
CV-2023-01809 

caronne WaU 

CITY OF TULSA BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Defendants, 

IN RE: Appeal from the City of Tulsa Board of Adjustment meeting decision of 

August 8th and continued on August 22, 2023 on Agenda No. 1322, Case NQ,. ; = 
BOA-23557 when the BOA approved the special exception for the Tulsat;:J , 

_..,..._ ·-

City-County Library Commission to build a library on Tulsa Public Schooli :-/ · 

property in a residential neighborhood (RS-3) and resultant variance to ~e. :' 

setback to 15ft. U l 
-F; :.i.; 

I\:, '...? 
Q) 

NOTICE OF APPEAL FROM CITY OF TULSA BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

COMES NOW, Kelsey Royce and Other Home Owners and Residents, the 

Petitioners vs. The City of Tulsa Board of Adjustment Agenda No. 1322, in Case 

No. BOA-23557, hereby appeal the decision of said Board of Adjustment 

rendered on said application. In support of this Appeal, Petitioners state the 

following: 
FILED 

CITY OF TULSA 

SEP O 1 2023 

A.M.4;fb ~ 
:FIC~ 07fA, CITY CLERK 

FILED 
CITYCF~ IIQliR)C:,:IO.U;TMENT 

DATE: qf,/z.3 TME: if.'Jt.f ~ 
RECEIVED BY: * Page 1 

a.m< a= TI-E a:wu: .I\ IA ~:tin Cha.pm"'1, 



7.47

• • 
1. The City of Tulsa Board of Adjustment ("BOA") is a quasi-judicial body organized under 

the authority of (11 0.5. 44-10) for the purpose of issuing final decisions on findings of 

fact in City land use zoning, special exceptions, and variances. 

2. Pursuant to Tulsa Zoning Code 70.120-F approval of a special exception requires an 

affirmative vote of at least 3 members of the board of adjustment. 

3. Pursuant to Tulsa Zoning Code 70.130-G approval of a variance requires an affirmative 

vote of at least 3 members of the board of adjustment. 

4. On August 22, 2023, BOA approved Case No. BOA-23557 to build a Library on 1110 with 

the following votes: 3 -yea; 1 - absent; 1- abstain. 

5. On August 22, 2023, conflicted BOA Member, Whitney Stauffer, did not recuse from 

discussion and voted to approve BOA-23557. 

6. Pursuant to Tulsa Zoning Code 70.120-8 Authority to File - Applications for special 

exception approval may be filed only by the owner of the subject property or by the 

property owner's authorized agent. 

7. Pursuant to Tulsa Zonjng Code 70,130-C Authorjty to File Variance applications may be 

filed only by the owner of the subject property or by the property owner's authorized 

agent. 

8. The property owner of 1110 E. 45th Place ("the Property") is Independent School 

District No. 1 Tulsa, Tulsa County ("Property Owner"). 

9. The governing body of the Property Owner is a body of 7 elected members of the local 

Board of Education (BOE). 

10. The governing body of the Property Owner did not approve the application for 

BOA-23557 and did not retain Lou Reynolds to represent them in the aforementioned 

case. 

11. Lou Reynolds (Eller & Detrick) was retained as Counsel for the Tulsa City-County Library 

Commission ("TCc~;l; )?,apply for a special exception and variance for property that is 

not 9,wn1>/;j bv,rcr.1.,,,., ,, , .. , 1-.·: . v,, ~o-v.r-,.,.,,.1.V\~ .,,,., ~-,, 

Page 2 



7.48

• • 
12. The BOA is held to standards outlined in its Ethics Policy which instruct members to 

avoid what a reasonable person would understand to be a conflict of interest or appear 

to be a conflict of interest (General Policy & Procedures, Section Ill). 

13. The Property Owner is currently under investigation by state and federal authorities. 

14. Independent Auditor's Report Dated January 27, 2021, found a significant deficiency in 

internal control over financial reporting related to "inappropriate revenue recognition 

related to transactions with the Foundation" (Foundation for Tulsa Schools, hereafter, 

"FTS"}. 

BOA Member Conflict of Interest 

15. City of Tulsa Board of Adjustment ("BOA") Member, Whitney Stauffer, was appointed to 

the BOA on April 12, 2023. 

16. BOA member, Whitney Stauffer, is Chairman of the Board of Oirectors of the Foundation 

for Tulsa Schools (FTS}, a charitable entity organized to support the mission of the 

Property Owner. 

17. The interests of FTS have become so confused with the operations of the Property 

Owner that it is inconceivable that Whitney Stauffer in her role as BOA Member and 

simultaneously Chair of FTS could make an unbiased decision when it comes to 

BOA-23557. 

18. Moises Echeverria-Ashworth is the President and CEO of FTS and is a TCCL Commission 

Member. 

19. Ellen Duecker is a TCCL Commission Member and is employed by the Property Owner as 

Special Bond Projects manager. 

20. BOA Member, Whitney Stauffer, works closely with Moises Echeverria-Ashworth at FTS. 

21. BOA Member, Whitney Stauffer, worked closely with TCCL Commission Member, Ellen 

Duecker on the 2021 Bond Committee for the Property Owner. 

Page 3 



7.49

• • 
22. On August 15, 2023, BOA Member, Whitney Stauffer, presided over a meeting of FTS 

which included the Property Owner's Chief Financial Officer and now-resigned former 
superintendent Deborah Gist. 

23. The interests of FTS have become so confused with the operations of Independent 
School District No.1, Tulsa, Tulsa County, that it is inconceivable that Whitney Stauffer in 
her role as BOA Member and simultaneously Chair of FTS could make an unbiased 
decision when it comes to BOA-23557. 

BOA Failed to Consider the Concerns Brought Forth by Neighborhood 

24. Questions and concerns emailed to Austin Chapman, Senior Planner at the Tulsa 
Planning Office in charge of BOA-23557, were not raised to the BOA. 

25. Comments from residents and property owners all opposed the special exception and 
variance. 

26. Findings of fact for approval were not made pursuant to 70.120G as required. 

Page4 



7.50

• • 
WHEREFORE, Kelsey Royce and others were deprived of their rights 

to an impartial public hearing before the City of Tulsa Board of Adjustment. 

The District Court should stay all proceedings on B0A-23557 and conduct a 

trial de novo to show that there was not only a conflict of interest when 

Whitney Stauffer was allowed to vote to approve the special exception for 

the construction for the building of library and variance; but also violated 

the rules when Lou Reynolds was allowed to represent the Library 

Commission because they aren't the property owner. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

This is to certify that on this 30th day of August, 2023 the above was filed 

with the Tulsa County Court Clerk with a request that a filed and stamped 

copy be forwarded and sent to the Judge Presiding over this case and the 

City of Tulsa Board of Adjustment. 

33 & f,. 4s-tv- ct. 
T v\.LSC{., D~ 1i!OS-

Page 5 



7.51

• • 
TFOUNDATION 
~ FOR TULSA SCHOOLS 

Board Meeting Minutes and Notes 
Tuesday, August 15, 2023 

The Foundation for Tulsa Schools held its Board of Directors Meeting in person on August 15, 2023. 

Board members present: 20. board members present, which represents quorum. 

Attended: Dr. Deborah Gist, Daniel Regan, Larry Faulkner, Brad White, Lachelle King, Jared Kuykendall, 

Annie Tomecek, Joey Wignarajah, Whitney Stauffer, Drew France, Maggie Hille Var, Mary Spears, Sarah 

Gould, Emily Fuller, Rick Kelly, Shanese Slaton, Molly Aspan, Judie Hackerott, Steffanie Bonner, Tei! 
Blackshare, Lauren Sherry 

Staff present: Moises Echeverria, Brena Meadows Thrash, Joey Oneal, Sam Tinker 

• Welcome & Call to Order -Whitney Stauffer, Board Chair 
o Call to Order [Whitney Stauffer] - 7:35AM 

• Board portal will be available on FTS website this week. Link will be sent out by staff 
o New board members 

• Lachelle King, City of Tu Isa 
• Jared Kuykendall, JP Morgan 
• Emily Fuller, Intern & Reading Partners 

o Addressing issues brought up by State Superintendent. 
• Board Member Spotlight 

• Lachelle King, City of Tulsa 
• IJared Kuykendall, JP Morgan 

Emily Fuller, Intern & Reading Partners 
0 

• Consent Agenda - 7:41 

o (MOTION) To approve [Joey Wignarajah]. Seconded [Molly Aspan], passed unanimously. 
o Consent agenda Items: 

• Finance Report 
• Committee Reports 

• Partners in Education 

• Program Evaluation & Development 
o Tulsa Public Schools Update - Dr. Deborah Gist speaks (7:42) 

• Accreditation 

• Accreditation officer visits each school as well as the district for the 
accreditation process annually. 

• Originally the district had 1 accreditation deficiency when process 
concluded in May, due to report late by 1 week 

1 



7.52

• 

• • 
• 2°d deficiency was added by state after Dr. Gist had reviewed and signed 

document 
• Deficiencies are not cumulative, start over each year, if deficiency is 

resolved 
• The accreditation process does not look at student outcomes 

Accountability 
• Student outcomes measured by school report cards. 
• When schools with failing grades consolidate, their grades start over, 

examples can be seen by districts like Oklahoma City 
• Two major goals in Strategic Plan for TPS- literacy for all ages and 

college/career readiness. Plan available for review. 
• Audit 

• Misconduct found internally by TPS 
• Reported the employee immediately to authorities once discovered and 

district has-been as transparent as possible throughout the process as there 
is an open investigation 

• TPS does have strong internal controls 
• Dr. Gist and CFO met with State Superintendent to discuss the new requests 

for documentation 
• Additional Information Discussed 

• 

• Claims that TPS disregard religious liberties -Opposite of what is 
established in law. 

• 65 school districts with the same or lower accreditation status than TPS. 
Open to questions . 

• Timeline for accreditation? (7:54AM) 
o Accreditation status remains same until state issues changes. 
o State board meeting Thursday, August 24 and accreditation has 

been stated to be on agenda 
o If tabled again, State Superintendent must address TPS 

accreditation by Dec. 
o If OSDE votes for accreditation with probation, the state has the 

ability to make leadership changes within the district 
• What happens to the kids? {8:05AM) 

o We will not know the long-term impact to students, but schools will 
still be open with instruction continuing 

o TPS has already lost teachers due to the accreditation question and 
will lose more if accreditation changes 

o There has not been public discussion from OSDE to change 
leadership in the 6 districts that are currently accredited with 
probation. 

o State Superintendent falsely claimed that 52% of TPS budget were 
administrative costs. The figure he used contained nutrition, buses, 
counselors, reading interventionists which are not administrative 
costs. 

o There is a cap by the state for every school district's administrative 
costs of 5% and there is dollar for dollar penalty if over 5%. 

o TPS; administrative costs are 4% 

2 



7.53

• • 
• What is the strategy moving forward for TPS? (8:14AM} 

o Launching landing page tulsapublicschools.org/facts 
o Would love to see business leaders take on addressing facts and 

media miscommunications. 
• Has anyone spoken to legislators to address checks and balances in OSDE? 

(8:23AM) 
o Statutes need to be written more tightly to strengthen procedures 

and clarify step-by-step processes for accreditation 
• Anything FTS can do to be proactive to address conversations relating to 

programs? (8:29AM} 
o Addressing it, but hard to plan for something that is unprecedented. 

Gathering data, we have strong arguments to show impact of our 
programs that support community. 

• Dr. Gist meets with Chamber board members today (Aug 15th
, 2023). 

• President's Report- Moises Echlverria, President & CEO (8:39AM} 
o Discussing long-term strategies, current issues might create a temporary pause in 

philanthropic support. 
o Discussing worst-case scenarios while continuing to support schools. 
o Moving forward with what is already scheduled. 
o Outreach to officials is critical. 
o ProtectTPS.com - most organized support effort. 
o Letter campaign, draft included in packet. 

• Other Updates -Whitney Stauffer 
o Calendar in board packet. 
o Board social networking at Driller's game September 16~. 
o Next Board Meeting: October 17th at 7:30AM at Memorial MS 
o Magic City Books have T-Shirts in support of TPS 

• Adjourn 
o (MOTION) To Adjourn [Drew France). Seconded [Larry Falkner), passed unanimously. 
o Adjourned 9:03AM 

3 



7.54

• Tulsa City-County 

aRY 
Thursday, July 20, 2023 

July Regular Meeting 

12:00 p.m. 

Central Library 
Executive conference Room on Level "L" 
400 Civic center 
Tulsa, OK 74103 

1. Opening of Meeting 

A. Call to Order - Leanne Helmerich, Chair 

B. Roll Call/Announcement of a Quorum 

2. Chief Executive Officer's Monthly Report 

A. CEO Remarks - Kimberly Johnson, CEO 

B. Employee Recognition 

3. Committee Report 

• 

A. Physical Facilities Committee Discussion and vote to Adopt, Reject or Modify an Agreement for Naming 
Rights for the new Brookside Library. Ellen Duecker (Action) 

B. Personnel Committee -Vote to Adopt, Reject or Modify the Proposed 2024 Library Commission Meeting 
Schedule-Dr. Wimberly (Action) 

4. Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of Consent Agenda 

B. Approval of June 2023 Minutes 

C. TCCL June Financial Reports 

D. Resolution: Declaring IT Surplus Property 

5. Nominating Committee 

A. Appointment of commissioners to the Nominating Committee - Leanne Helmerich, Chair (Report) 

6. Closing of Meeting 

A. Announcement of Next Meeting: August 17, 2023 at Rudisill Regional Library- 1520 N. Hartford Avenue, 
Tulsa, OK - Leanne Helmerich, Chair 

B. Adjournment · Leanne Helmerich, Chair 

8/29/23, 7::rn PM 
;·:1,_, 1 :;t 1 



7.55

8/24/23, 8:06 AM • City BOA Rules & Procedures - Tulsa .g Office 

General Policies and Rules of Procedure 
Board of Adjustment of the City of Tulsa 

SECTION I - RULES OF PROCEDURE 
A.Name 

The name of this board shall be "Board of Adjustment of the City of Tulsa". hereinafter referred to as the "Board". 

B. Membership 

The Board shall consist of five members, who shall be appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. 
Members of the Board shall serve without pay for a term of three years and shall continue to serve until their 
successors are appointed. Vacancies shall be filled for an unexpired term of any member in the manner set forth for 
appointments to a full term. 

C. Removal 

A Board member may be removed for cause by the City Council after notice, written charges and a public meeting. 
Three consecutive absences from regular and/or special called meetings, or absences totaling 2/3 of the regularly 
called or special called meetings held during any six month period, shall be sufficient cause for removal from the 
Board. 

D. Officers 

The Board shall elect annually from its appointed members a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman and Secretary. The Vice
Chairman shall serve as Chairman in the absence of the Chairman. Any vacancy in office shall be filled by the 
Chairman for the unexpired term only. The election shall take place on the first regularly scheduled meeting of the 
Board in the month of June. 

1) The duties of the Chairman shall include: 

a) Presiding over meetings with all powers under parliamentary procedure, unless the Chairman designates 
another member to preside; 
b) Signing official documents of the Board; 
c) Appointing a Vice-Chairman and Secretary in the event the said officers are absent from the meeting. 

2) The duties of the Vice-Chairman shall include: 

a) Presiding over all meetings in the absence of the Chair and shall have full powers of the Chair in matters that 
come before the Board; and 
b) Assuming the duties of the Secretary in the event that the Secretary is absent from the meeting. 

3) The duties of the Secretary shall include: 

a) Assuming duties of the Chair in the event that the Chair and Vice-Chair are absent from the meeting; and 
b) Collecting and stamping exhibits of each meeting for the official record. 

E. Quorum 

A numerical majority of three Board members shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of any Board business. 

F. General Procedures 

1. If inclined, the Board may grant a continuance of a scheduled public meeting at the request of the applicant, 
interested parties, or Board staff. 
2. A motion to reconsider any action of the Board can be made by a Board member who voted for the prevailing party. 

Mtps://tulsaplanning.org/boards-commissions/city-of-tulsa-board--of-adjustmenUcity-boa-rules-procedures/ 1/4 



7.56

8/24/23, 8:06 AM • City BOA Rules & Procedures - Tulsa P.g Office 

a) The Board may take a vote to reconsider an action of the Board during the meeting or at the next regularly 
scheduled meeting of the Board. 
b) The action to be reconsidered will be placed on the subsequent meeting agenda and written notice must be 
given to all interested parties at least five working days in advance of the scheduled meeting. 

3. When the public wishes to communicate with Board members, the appropriate way is through a letter or e-mail 
correspondence to Board staff, who will in turn distribute it to the Board members and the applicant. 

G. Public Meeting Procedures 

1. The Board shall consider only public meeting items which have been properly advertised as required by law and 
only those .where all fees have been paid, including fees for legal advertising. 

2. The Chair can modify the order in which the cases will be considered from the order in which they are listed on the 
agenda. The procedure for each case shall normally be as follows: 

a) Staff will announce the case by reading the item number, case number and applicant's name. 

b) Staff will read the location of the subject tract and the action requested from the case report. 

c) The Chair calls on the applicant for a presentation, not to exceed fifteen (15) minutes. If the applicant 
presents a significantly changed application from that submitted for BOA staff review (as determined by BOA staff 
and at the BOA at the time of the presentation), such action is considered grounds for continuance. 

d) Any member of the public may address the Board at a regular or special meeting after signing in for a specific 
item. When recognized by the Chair, a member of the public should state his or her name and address. Speakers 
will be given five (5) minutes to speak on an item; however, the Chair may further limit that time based on the 
number of speakers for an item or impose an aggregate lime for all speakers. 

e) The Chair may rule a comment out of order if it is redundant, irrelevant, indecorous or untimely. 

f) The applicant is given the opportunity to rebut and is allowed no more than ten (1 OJ minutes to speak. If the 
applicant, in the Chair's opinion, should present new facts or information, the Chair may allow the protestants 
time to rebut same. 

g) The Chair announces the public hearing is closed on the case and opens the review session, during which the 
Board members will discuss the case among themselves and make a recommendation. 

h) BOA members shall address only the presiding Chair for recognition and shall confine their remarks to the 
question under discussion. 

i) During the review session, which shall be open and public, no new evidence shall be admitted unless 
specifically requested by a member of the Board and permitted by the Chair. However, any Board member may 
make a motion at any point in time when he/she feel they have sufficient information to do do. 

j) Before a motion is made, there shall be an opportunity for discussion of the case by the Board and for each 
Board member to make comments. After a motion is made, there shall be further opportunity for discussion by the 
Board, and the maker of the motion may refine the terms of the motion pursuant to such discussion. When the 
motion is formalized, the Chair shall restate the motion, state the name of the maker of the motion and the 
member seconding the motion, and call for a vote. If a Board member desires to amend the motion following the 
Chair's restatement of the motion but prior to the Chair's call for a vote, the Board member suggesting the 
amendment may ask unanimous consent to modify the motion. If any Board Member objects to the modification 
of the motion, the Board Member proposing the amendment shall move that the motion be amended. The motion 
to amend must be seconded, is debatable, and must be adopted by a majority vote of the members present. 

3. A second is required on all motions in order to bring the question to a vote of the Board. 

https://tulsaplanning.org/boards-commissionslcrty--0f-tulsa--board--0f-adjustmenUcity-boa-rules-procedures/ 2/4 



7.57

• 
Tulsa Public Schools 
Independent School District No. 1-1, Tulsa County, Oklahoma 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

• 

II. Findings Relating to the Financial Statement Audit as Required to be Reported in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards 

A. Internal Control 

Finding 2020-001 
Significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting 

Finding: The Foundation for Tulsa Schools (the Foundation) is a legally separate not-for-profit 
organization whose purpose is to enhance the educational programs of the District by providing a 
permanent entity through which contributions can be received and distributions made for the 
benefit of the District and its students. During the course of performing the FY 2020 audit, we 
noted the following matters with regards to the Foundation: 

• District management did not perform a timely review to determine whether the Foundation 
met the reporting requirements of a component unit, as defined in GASS Statement No. 39, 
Determining Whether Cerlain Organizations Are Component Units, an Amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 14. 

, The District did not adequately review contribution funds received from the Foundation in 
both FY2019 and FY2020 as described in the condition below. The misstatement was 
corrected by the District and recorded in its 2020 financial slatements. 

Criteria: Effective internal controls should be established and maintained to prevent, or detect and 
correct material misstatements in the annual financial statements on a timely basis. In addition, 
monitoring procedures should be established to ensure that potential component units are 
evaluated at least annually as to whether inclusion in the District's financial statements Is 
required. 

Condition: The Foundation is a legally separate but related organization. As such, transactions 
with them need to be subject to the same review and scrutiny as all other transactions. In the 
current year, certain Foundation receipt journal entries were posted in the financial statements 
incorrectly resulting in: 

(1) An overstatement of 2020 other local revenue in the government-wide activities financial 
statements (of approximately $1.5 million) as there were revenues related to 2019 that were 
incorrectly recognized in 2020; and 

(2) An understatement of 2020 other local revenue in the government-wide activities financial 
statements (of approximately $1.6 million) as there were receipts related to 2020 that were 
incorrectly recognized in 2021. This misstatement was corrected by the District and recorded 
in its 2020 financial statements. 

In addition, U.S. GAAP requires that certain legally separate not-for-profit organizations be 
evaluated for potential inclusion in the primary government financial statements as a component 
unit. The District did not perform a timely review to determine whether the Foundation met those 
requirements. Although District management ultimately concluded that inclusion in the District's 
financial statements was not required, this is an accounting policy that needs to be reviewed in a 
timely manner in order to facilitate accurate financial reporting. 

11 



7.58

• 
Tulsa Public Schools 
Independent School District No. 1-1, Tulsa County, Oklahoma 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

• 

Cause: With regards to the inappropriate revenue recognition related to transactions with the 
Foundation, the errors were caused by a combination of factors, including lack of review and 
scrutiny of Foundation-related transactions. With regards to the consideration of whether the 
Foundation financial statements should be included in the District's CAFR, this is the result of not 
having an accounting policy that specifically addresses monitoring of potential component units. 

Effect: Preliminary fund financial statements, government-wide financial statements and note 
disclosures contained errors that were significant to its 2020 financial statements. Such errors 
were corrected and revised by the District, and are properly reflected in its 2020 financial 
statements. 

Although it was ultimately determined that the Foundation did not meet the reporting 
requirements of inclusion in the District's financial statements as a component unit, failing to 
include a discrete component unit In accordance with U.S. GAAP would result in the District's 
financial statements being materially misstated. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the District implement procedures to ensure that 
Foundation transactions are reviewed for proper cutoff. We also recommend that the District 
establish an accounting policy that requires regular review, at least annually, of all organizations 
that could meet the requirements for inclusion in the District's financial statements as a 
component unit. 

District Management's Response: The District agrees with the finding and recommendation. 



7.59

• 
Tulsa Public Schools 
Independent School District No. 1-1, Tulsa County, Oklahoma 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Finding 2020-002 

• 

Significant Deficiency In Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Finding: The District"s internal controls over financial reporting failed to detect significant errors in 
the District's financial statements in the recording of the Net Pension Liability and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources and Deferred Outflows of Resources related to the District's participation in 
employee retirement system sponsored by Oklahoma Teachers' Retirement System (OTRS). The 
District's internal control system also failed to detect errors in the recording and disclosures of the 
Net OPEB Asset and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to the District's participation in the 
post-employment benefits sponsored by OTRS. 

Criteria: Effective internal controls should be established and maintained to prevent, or detect and 
correct material misstatements in the annual financial statements on a timely basis. 

Condition: The District's financial statements as originally prepared contained significant 
misstatements in the recording of the financial statement amounts, specifically Deferred Inflows 
and Deferred Outflows of Resources related to the District's participation in the OTRS defined 
benefit pension plan. In addition, recorded amounts and disclosures related to the District's 
participation in the OTRS other Post-Employment Benefit Obligation were also misstated. 

Cause: District personnel understand the financial reporting requirements of GASB Statement 
No. 68 and GASB Statement No. 75; however due to lack of experienced accounting personnel, 
there was not an adequate review of the supporting schedules maintained by the District to 
determine that the amounts reported by the District were correct. 

Effect: Amounts reported for Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources were 
misstated in the original financial statements. The District subsequently corrected its June 30, 
2020 financial statements. 

Recommendation: More than one member of the District's financial reporting staff should be 
trained to have a deeper knowledge of the accounting and reporting requirements of GASB 68 
and GASB 75, and an independent review of the supporting schedules and journal entries 
prepared by the District should be performed. 

District's Management Response: The District agrees with the finding and recommendation. 

B. Instance of Noncompliance 

No matters to report. 

Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards 

A. Internal Control 

No matters to report. 

B. Instances of Noncompliance 

No matters to report. 

13 



7.60

Philip J. Eller 
Kevin H. Wylie 
R. Louis Reynolds 
Daniel C. Cupps 
Andrew A. Shank 
Shanann Pinkham Passley 
Mac D. Finlayson 
Steven P. Flowers 
Kenneth E. Crump Jr. 
Sloane Ryan Lile 
Nathalie M. Cornett 
Natalie J. Marra 
Jacob W. Purdum 

Of Counsel 
Jerry M. Snider 
Katherine Saunders, PLC 
Heidi L. Shadid 
Joshua M. Tietsort 

Donald L. Detrich, Retired 

VIA HAND DELIVERY & E-MAIL 
City of Tulsa Board of Adjustment 
c/o Tulsa Planning Office 
Tulsa Ci~ Hall 
175 E. 2n Street, 4th Floor 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103 
A chapman(@cityofi ulsa. org 

EllerQetrich 
A Professional Corporation 

September 6, 2023 

Re: BOA-23557 Request for Reconsideration 

Dear Mr. Chapman: 

Telephone 
(918) 747-8900 

Toll Free 
(866) 547-8900 

Facsimile 
(918) 747-2665 

Writer's E-Mail 
LReP1wlitsrJ•EllerD,!tl"ich.com 

FILED ,AOJUSfMENf 
cm' OF ,u.sA BOARD OF 

DATE:. '1 / b / :> 1 llME: ') ·. J7_(AM)(FM) 

RECEIVED BY: ~ . 
Av•,,,J., f\ Ch." f mo- ti 

a.mt<CF11-Eroiro:~.=..:..:---=-

This letter serves as the Applicant's request for the Board of Adjustment to reconsider its 
decision in BOA Case No. BOA-23557 on August 22, 2023. The Applicant requested a Special 
Exception for a Library in the RS-3 District and a Variance to reduce the required 25-foot street 
setback to 15 feet. 

After hearing from the Applicant and interested parties and following robust Board 
discussion, the Board voted to approve the Special Exception and the Variance. However, without 
explanation, acting Chairperson Radney abstained from the vote, resulting in a 3(aye)- l(abstain) 
vote. 

Following the Board's decision, a Notice of Appeal was filed by Kelsey Royce alleging 
that Board Member Stauffer had a conflict of interest and should not have voted. Because only 
four of the five Board members were present, acting Chairperson Radney's abstention has made 
the allegation of Board Member Stauffer's conflict of interest material to the resolution of the case. 

@ 
www .EllerDetrich.com 

2727 East 21st Street, Suite 200, Tulsa Oklahoma 74114-3533 



7.61

Accordingly, the Applicant requests that Case No. BOA-23557 be placed on the 

September 12, 2023 Board agenda to be reconsidered by the full membership of the Board in order 

to resolve any potential impact of such alleged conflict of interest. 

Sincerely, 

ELLER & DETRICH 
A Professional Corporation 

I :\9 !020\0002\BOA \Request for Reconsideration.docx 



REVISED 12/4/2023 

Case Number: BOA-23600 

Hearing Date: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Dylan Siers 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Robert Bell   

Property Owner: GAYTAN, BLAS 

Action Requested: Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS-3 District (45.031-D); Variance 
to allow the floor area of  detached accessory buildings to exceed 500 square feet and 40% of the floor area of the 
principal residential structure (Section 45.030-B) Variance to allow a detached Accessory Dwelling Unit to exceed 
one story or 18 feet in height and to exceed 10 feet in height to the top of the top plate. (Section 90.090-C) 

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use: Residential    

Tract Size: 0.16 acres 

Location: 1624 S TROOST AV E 

Present Zoning: RS-3 

8.1



REVISED 12/4/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 9307  Case Number: BOA-23600 
CD: 4

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: Robert Bell 

ACTION REQUESTED: Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS-3 District (45.031-D); 
Variance to allow the floor area of  detached accessory buildings to exceed 500 square feet and 40% of the floor 
area of the principal residential structure (Section 45.030-B)Variance to allow a detached Accessory Dwelling Unit to 
exceed one story or 18 feet in height and to exceed 10 feet in height to the top of the top plate. (Section 90.090-C) 

LOCATION: 1624 S TROOST AV E ZONED: RS-3 

PRESENT USE: Residential TRACT SIZE: 7000.12 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LT 6 BLK 14, ORCUTT ADDN CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF 
OKLAHOMA 

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:   
BOA-18035 – 1628 S Troost Ave – May 1998 - Board approved a variance to allow an accessory building covering 
an area that is over 20% of required rear yard, a variance of the required 3' setback for a detached accessory 
building to 1.5' to permit rebuilding a detached garage per plan submitted.  

BOA-22804 – 1611 S Trenton Ave -  December 2019 - Board appr oved Variance to allow a lot to have less than 
50% open space (Sec. 80.020-B); Variance to allow an accessory structure to exceed one story, 18 feet in height 
overall & 10 feet in height to the top of the top plate (Sec. 90.90.C); Variance to allow an accessory building to cover 
more than 30% of the rear setback (Sec. 90.090-C.2); Variance to allow accessory buildings to exceed 40% of the 
floor area of the principal structure (Sec. 45.030-B); Special Exception to allow an addition to a nonconforming 
structure (80.030-D) 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as part of a “Neighborhood”:  

Neighborhoods are “Mostly Residential Uses” which includes detached, missing middle, and multi-dwelling unit 
housing types. Churches, schools, and other low-intensity uses that support residents’ daily needs are often 
acceptable, particularly for properties abutting Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional Center land use areas. 
Multi-dwelling unit housing that takes access off of an arterial is considered Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional 
Center. If a multi-dwelling unit housing property takes access off of a lower-order street separated from the arterial, 
then it would be considered Neighborhood. 

STATEMENT OF HARDSHIP: The purpose of allowing accessory dwelling units within Residential districts is to 
accommodate new housing units while preserving the character of existing neighborhoods, allow efficient use of the 
city's existing housing stock and infrastructure, and providing housing options and choices that respond to changing 
lifestyle needs. The code specifies that new buildings and modifications to existing buildings should be designed 
with sensitivity to their context in terms of building placement, proportions, building materials, and similar design 
features. The Accessory Dwelling proposed is being placed on the same foundation without expansion as the 
garage facility. The structure is utilizing a brick wainscot along with the same siding and roofing material as the 
primary residence. The owner has gone to great detail to blend the building materials associated with the accessory 
structure to that of the primary residence. Due to the non-conformity of the adjacent properties to the south and 
southwest, creating a condition of deficiency of Livability Space, it was determined to be extremely important to 
maintain the open space associated with the subject property. The findings verify that it is common for Accessory 
Dwellings to be located on the properties of the 1600 block of Troost and Trenton Avenue. It is further identified that 
to maintain the livability space of the parcel sets the tone of preserving a more desirable neighborhood character. 

8.2



REVISED 12/4/2023 

The introduction of an Accessory Dwelling on the subject tract is in compliance with the intent of the zoning code as 
outlined. The proposed use is in harmony with the existing development and character of the neighborhood. 

STAFF ANALYSIS:  Applicant is requesting to get a Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an 
RS-3 District (45.031-D); Variance to allow the floor area of  detached accessory buildings to exceed 500 square 
feet and 40% of the floor area of the principal residential structure (Section 45.030-B)Variance to allow a detached 
Accessory Dwelling Unit to exceed one story or 18 feet in height and to exceed 10 feet in height to the top of the top 
plate. (Section 90.090-C) 

Facts staff finds favorable for variance request: 
 There have been similar projects near the subject property and the accessory dwelling unit is being built on

the same foundation as the previous structure.

Facts Staff find unfavorable for the variance request: 
 None.

SAMPLE MOTION:  

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS-3 District 
(45.031-D) 

 Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

 Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code and 
will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

Variance: 

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Variance to allow the floor area of  detached accessory buildings to exceed 
500 square feet and 40% of the floor area of the principal residential structure (Section 45.030-B)Variance to allow a 
detached Accessory Dwelling Unit to exceed one story or 18 feet in height and to exceed 10 feet in height to the top 
of the top plate. (Section 90.090-C) 

 Finding the hardship(s) to be________________________________.

 Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

 Subject to the following conditions ___________________________.

In granting the Variance the Board finds that the following facts, favorable to the property owner, have been 
established:  

a. That the physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of the subject property would result in
unnecessary hardships or practical difficulties for the property owner, as distinguished from a mere
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out;

b. That literal enforcement of the subject zoning code provision is not necessary to achieve the provision’s
intended purpose;

c. That the conditions leading to the need of the requested variance are unique to the subject property and
not applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;

d. That the alleged practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship was not created or self-imposed by the
current property owner;

e. That the variance to be granted is the minimum variance that will afford relief;

8.3



REVISED 12/4/2023 

f. That the variance to be granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood in which the
subject property is located, nor substantially or permanently impair use or development of adjacent property;
and

g. That the variance to be granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the
purposes, spirit, and intent of this zoning code or the comprehensive plan.”

8.4



S
 U

T
IC

A
 A

V
E

E 19TH ST S

E 15TH ST S

E 17TH ST S

E 16TH ST S

S
 T

R
O

O
S

T
 A

V
E

SWAN DR

S
 V

IC
T

O
R

 A
V

E

E 14TH PL S

S
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

S
 T

R
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

E 17TH PL S

E 16TH PL S

S
 T

R
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

E

E 16TH ST S

S
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

E 17TH PL S

S
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

E 17TH PL S E 17TH PL S

PUD-553

PUD-811

PUD-708A
PUD-708

PUD-760

PUD-437

PUD-437-A

PUD-296

PUD-760A

PUD-614

Z-7555

RS-3

IMX

CH

OL

RM-2

RS-3

OL

OH
RS-3

OM

CH

OL

CS CS

CH

RM-2

OM

RD

OL

PK

OM

OL

PK

MX2-U-U OL

PK

RM-2

RM-2

HP

HP

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23600

8.5



S
 U

T
IC

A
 A

V
E

E 15TH ST S

E 17TH ST S

E 19TH ST S

E 16TH ST S

S
 T

R
O

O
S

T
 A

V
E

SWAN DR

S
 V

IC
T

O
R

 A
V

E

E 14TH PL S

S
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

S
 T

R
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

E 17TH PL S

E 16TH PL S

S
 T

R
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

E

E 16TH ST S

S
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

E 17TH PL S

S
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

E 17TH PL S E 17TH PL S

HP

HP

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23600

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

8.6



E 17TH ST S

S
 T

R
O

O
S

T
 A

V
E

HP

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23600 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely

align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

8.7



8.8



8.9



8.10



8.11



8.12



8.13



8.14



8.15



8.16



8.17



8.18



8.19



8.20



8.21



8.22



8.23



8.24



8.25



8.26



8.27



REVISED 12/4/2023 

Case Number: BOA-23602 

Hearing Date: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Austin Chapman 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Rob  Coday  

Property Owner: IGLESIA DE DIOS 
PENTECOSTES OBRA DEL 

Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a Public, Civic, and Institutional / Religious Assembly Use in the 
RS-2 District (Table 5.020, Table 5-2, Table 5-2.5)  

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use: Church    

Tract Size: 2.16 acres 

Location: 641 S 129 AV E 

Present Zoning: RS-2 

9.1



REVISED 12/4/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 9404  Case Number: BOA-23602 
CD: 3

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: Rob Coday  

ACTION REQUESTED: Special Exception to permit a Public, Civic, and Institutional / Religious Assembly Use in 
the RS-2 District (Table 5.020, Table 5-2, Table 5-2.5)  

LOCATION: 641 S 129 AV E ZONED: RS-2 

PRESENT USE: Church TRACT SIZE: 93998.51 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LTS 4 THRU 10 BLK 4 & W25 VAC ALLEY ADJ ON E & LT 4 BLK 6 & E25 VAC ALLEY 
ADJ ON W, MEADOWBROOK HGTS ADDN CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as part of a “Neighborhood”:  

Neighborhoods are “Mostly Residential Uses” which includes detached, missing middle, and multi-dwelling unit 
housing types. Churches, schools, and other low-intensity uses that support residents’ daily needs are often 
acceptable, particularly for properties abutting Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional Center land use areas. 
Multi-dwelling unit housing that takes access off of an arterial is considered Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional 
Center. If a multi-dwelling unit housing property takes access off of a lower-order street separated from the arterial, 
then it would be considered Neighborhood. 

STAFF ANALYSIS:  The applicant is requesting a Special Exception to permit a Public, Civic, and Institutional / 
Religious Assembly Use in the RS-2 District (Table 5.020, Table 5-2, Table 5-2.5)  

As it currently sits the property seems more suitable for a religious assembly use rather than a residential use. 

SAMPLE MOTION:   Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to permit a Public, Civic, and 
Institutional / Religious Assembly Use in the RS-2 District (Table 5.020, Table 5-2, Table 5-2.5)  

 Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

 Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code and 
will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

9.2



REVISED 12/4/2023 9.3



S
 1

27
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

E 7TH ST S

S
 1

31
S

T
 E

 A
V

E

S
 132N

D
 E

 A
V

E

E 4TH PL S

E 5TH ST S

S
 1

30
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

E 4TH ST S

E 7TH PL S

E 4TH PL S

E 4TH PL S

E 7TH ST S

PUD-433
PUD-433B

PUD-537
PUD-618

PUD-509

PUD-537

PUD-623

Z-7004-SP-1

Z-7473

RS-2

RS-2

IL

CO

CS

CG

CG

AG-R

CS

RM-1

OL

CH

CO

CS

RM-2

RS-2

RS-3

S
 1

29
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23602

9.4



S
 1

27
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

E 7TH ST S

S
 1

31
S

T
 E

 A
V

E

S
 132N

D
 E

 A
V

E

E 4TH PL S

E 5TH ST S

S
 1

30
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

E 4TH ST S

E 7TH PL S

E 4TH PL S

E 4TH PL S

E 7TH ST S

S
 1

29
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23602

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

9.5



E 7TH ST S

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23602

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

9.6



REVISED 12/4/2023 

Case Number: BOA-23603 

Hearing Date: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Dylan Siers 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Janet Espino   

Property Owner: ESPINO, DANIEL & JANET & 
DANIEL JR 

Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a Manufactured Housing Unit in the AG zoning district. (Section 
25.020-C; Table 25-1.5); Special Exception to allow the Manufactured Housing Unit permanently (Sec.40.210); 
Special Exception to reduce the required parking ratio for a Manufactured Housing Unit in the AG District (Sec. 
55.050-K) 

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use: Vacant    

Tract Size: 2.5 acres 

Location: 2703 E 41 ST N 

Present Zoning: AG 

10.1



REVISED 12/4/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 207  Case Number: BOA-23603 
CD: 1

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: Janet Espino 

ACTION REQUESTED: Special Exception to permit a Manufactured Housing Unit in the AG zoning district. (Section 
25.020-C; Table 25-1.5); Special Exception to allow the Manufactured Housing Unit permanently (Sec.40.210); 
Special Exception to reduce the required parking ratio for a Manufactured Housing Unit in the AG District (Sec. 
55.050-K) 

LOCATION: 2703 E 41 ST N ZONED: AG 

PRESENT USE: vacant TRACT SIZE: 108900.45 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: W/2 W/2 SE SE NW SEC 17 20 13, CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF 
OKLAHOMA 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as part of a “Neighborhood”:  

Neighborhoods are “Mostly Residential Uses” which includes detached, missing middle, and multi-dwelling unit 
housing types. Churches, schools, and other low-intensity uses that support residents’ daily needs are often 
acceptable, particularly for properties abutting Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional Center land use areas. 
Multi-dwelling unit housing that takes access off of an arterial is considered Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional 
Center. If a multi-dwelling unit housing property takes access off of a lower-order street separated from the arterial, 
then it would be considered Neighborhood. 

STAFF ANALYSIS:  Applicant is requesting to obtain a Special Exception to permit a Manufactured Housing Unit in 
the AG zoning district. (Section 25.020-C; Table 25-1.5); and a Special Exception to allow the Manufactured 
Housing Unit permanently (Sec.40.210); Special Exception to reduce the required parking ratio for a Manufactured 
Housing Unit in the AG District (Sec. 55.050-K) 

SAMPLE MOTION:  Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to permit a Manufactured Housing 
Unit in the AG zoning district. (Section 25.020-C; Table 25-1.5); and a Special Exception to allow the Manufactured 
Housing Unit permanently (Sec.40.210); Special Exception to reduce the required parking ratio for a Manufactured 
Housing Unit in the AG District (Sec. 55.050-K) 

 Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

 Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code and 
will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

10.2



REVISED 12/4/2023 

10.3



N
 D

E
L

A
W

A
R

E
 A

V
E

E 41ST ST N

E 44TH ST N

E 44TH PL N

N
 C

O
L

U
M

B
IA

 A
V

E

E 42ND ST N

E 42ND PL N

E 43RD ST N

E 41ST PL N

E 40TH PL N

R
A

M
P

E 39TH CT N

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23603

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

10.4



E 41ST ST N

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23603

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

10.5



2

10.6



3

Sent from my iPhone 

10.7



REVISED 12/4/2023 

Case Number: BOA-23604 

Hearing Date: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Dylan Siers 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Randy Glad    

Property Owner: ADVANCE BIOGAS LLC 
PROJECT 22-7-1101 

Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a parks and recreation use in an AG District ( Table 25-1) 

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use: Agriculture   

Tract Size: 20 acres 

Location: East of the Northeast corner of 
South 145th East avenue and East 11th Street 

Present Zoning: AG 

11.1



REVISED 12/4/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 9403  Case Number: BOA-23604 
CD: 6

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: Randy Glad  

ACTION REQUESTED: Special Exception to permit a parks and recreation use in an AG District ( Table 25-1)  

LOCATION: East of the Northeast corner of S 145th E avenue and East 11th Street ZONED: AG 

PRESENT USE: AG TRACT SIZE: 871203.57 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: E/2 SW SW SEC 3 19 14 20.00ACS,  CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF 
OKLAHOMA 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as part of a “Neighborhood”:  

Neighborhoods are “Mostly Residential Uses” which includes detached, missing middle, and multi-dwelling unit 
housing types. Churches, schools, and other low-intensity uses that support residents’ daily needs are often 
acceptable, particularly for properties abutting Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional Center land use areas. 
Multi-dwelling unit housing that takes access off of an arterial is considered Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional 
Center. If a multi-dwelling unit housing property takes access off of a lower-order street separated from the arterial, 
then it would be considered Neighborhood. 

STAFF ANALYSIS:  Applicant is requesting to obtain a Special Exception to permit a parks and recreation use in an 
AG District ( Table 25-1) for a baseball facility.  

SAMPLE MOTION: Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to permit a parks and recreation use in 
an AG District ( Table 25-1) for a baseball facility.  

Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet. 

 Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code and 
will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

11.2



REVISED 12/4/2023 

11.3



E 12TH ST S

E 11TH PL S

S
 1

49
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

S
 1

46
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

R
A

M
P

AG

RS-3
AG

CS

CS

RS-3

CS

AG-R

S
 1

45
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

E 11TH ST S

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23604

11.4



E 12TH ST S

E 11TH PL S

S
 1

49
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

S
 1

46
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

R
A

M
P

S
 1

45
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

E 11TH ST S

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23604

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

11.5



E 11TH ST S

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23604

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

11.6



11.7



11.8



REVISED 12/4/2023 

Case Number: BOA-23605 

Hearing Date: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Dylan Siers 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Ashton Prickett  

Property Owner: CEPEDA, MARCELO AND 
ELIDA 

Action Requested: Special Exception to permit an assembly and entertainment use in the AG District. 

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use:   Vacant 

Tract Size: 10.2 acres 

Location: North of the Northwest corner of East 
21st Street South and South 193rd East Avenue 

Present Zoning: AG 

12.1



REVISED 12/4/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 9412  Case Number: BOA-23605 
CD: 6

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: Ashton Prickett 

ACTION REQUESTED: Special Exception to permit an Assembly and Entertainment Use in an AG zoned district 
(Sec. 25.020; Table 25-1).  

LOCATION: North of the Northeast corner of East 21st Street South and South 193rd East Avenue ZONED: AG 

PRESENT USE: Vacant TRACT SIZE: 444357.38 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEG SECR NE TH W1134.19 N344.98 NE695.92 NE68.74 NE174.14 NE52.65 NE69.50 
NE136.45 S533.27 POB SEC 12 19 14 10.201ACS, CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  

BOA-21148 – 10/26/2010 – North of Subject property – The board denied a request for a Special Exception to 
permit a paint ball park (Use Unit 20 - Commercial Recreation) in an AG district; and a Variance of the paving 
requirement for parking and driving surfaces (Section 1303.D) 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as part of a “Neighborhood”:  

Neighborhoods are “Mostly Residential Uses” which includes detached, missing middle, and multi-dwelling unit 
housing types. Churches, schools, and other low-intensity uses that support residents’ daily needs are often 
acceptable, particularly for properties abutting Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional Center land use areas. 
Multi-dwelling unit housing that takes access off of an arterial is considered Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional 
Center. If a multi-dwelling unit housing property takes access off of a lower-order street separated from the arterial, 
then it would be considered Neighborhood. 

STAFF ANALYSIS:  The applicant is requesting a special exception to permit an assembly and entertainment use 
in the AG district. 

The applicant will need to obtain a certificate of occupancy to ensure the building meets code requirements for an 
assembly and entertainment use if special exception is approved.  

SAMPLE MOTION:   Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to permit an Assembly and 
Entertainment Use in an AG zoned district (Sec. 25.020; Table 25-1) 

 Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code and 
will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

12.2



REVISED 12/4/2023 

12.3



AGAG

S
 1

93
R

D
 E

 A
V

E

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23605

12.4



S
 1

93
R

D
 E

 A
V

E

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23605

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

12.5



S
 1

93
R

D
 E

 A
V

E

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23605

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

12.6



12.7



12.8



12.9



12.10



12.11



12.12



12.13



12.14



12.15



12.16



12.17



12.18



12.19



12.20



12.21



12.22



12.23



12.24



12.25



REVISED 12/4/2023 

Case Number: BOA-23606 

Hearing Date: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Dylan Siers 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Chris Ossenbeck  

Property Owner: OSSENBECK, CHRIS DON & 
MONA LUMINITA REV 

Action Requested: Special Exception to increase the permitted driveway width in a RS district (Sec. 55.090-F.3) 

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use: Residential   

Tract Size: 0.41 acres 

Location: 8108 S FLORENCE AV E 

Present Zoning: RS-3 

13.1



REVISED 12/4/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 8317  Case Number: BOA-23606

CD: 2

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: Chris Ossenbeck 

ACTION REQUESTED: Special Exception to increase the permitted driveway width in a RS-3 district (Sec. 55.090-
F.3)

LOCATION: 8108 S FLORENCE AV E ZONED: RS-3 

PRESENT USE: Residential TRACT SIZE: 17968.57 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: PRT BLK 1 BEG 35S NEC TH S163.36 W110 N163.36 E110 POB, ORAL ROBERTS 
UNIVERSITY HGTS 3RD ADDN CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as part of a “Neighborhood”:  

Neighborhoods are “Mostly Residential Uses” which includes detached, missing middle, and multi-dwelling unit 
housing types. Churches, schools, and other low-intensity uses that support residents’ daily needs are often 
acceptable, particularly for properties abutting Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional Center land use areas. 
Multi-dwelling unit housing that takes access off of an arterial is considered Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional 
Center. If a multi-dwelling unit housing property takes access off of a lower-order street separated from the arterial, 
then it would be considered Neighborhood. 

STAFF ANALYSIS:  Applicant is requesting a Special Exception to increase the permitted driveway width in a RS 
district (Sec. 55.090-F.3). 

SAMPLE MOTION:   Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to increase the permitted driveway 
width in a RS-3 district (Sec. 55.090-F.3). 

Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet 

 Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code and will 
not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

13.2



REVISED 12/4/2023 

13.3



E 80TH PL S

E 78TH PL S

S
 E

V
A

N
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 G

A
R

Y
 P

L

S
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 P
L

E 81ST PL S

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

E 84TH ST S

S
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 A
V

E

S
 D

E
L

A
W

A
R

E
 P

L

E 79TH ST S

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 P

L

E 83RD ST S

E 82ND PL S

E 82ND ST S

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

E 80TH ST S

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 P

L

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

E 83RD ST S

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
ES
 E

V
A

N
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

E 82ND ST S

S
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 A
V

E

S
 E

V
A

N
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

S
 E

V
A

N
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 P
L

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

PUD-320A

PUD-121

PUD-651

PUD-395A ABANDONED

RS-2

RS-2RD

RS-1

RS-3

CS

OL

AG

OL

RS-3
AG

E 81ST ST S

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23605

13.4



E 80TH PL S

E 78TH PL S

S
 E

V
A

N
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 G

A
R

Y
 P

L

S
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 P
L

E 81ST PL S

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

E 84TH ST S

S
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 A
V

E

E 79TH ST S

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 P

L

E 83RD ST S

E 82ND PL S

E 82ND ST S

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

E 80TH ST S

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 P

L

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

E 83RD ST S

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
ES
 E

V
A

N
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

E 82ND ST S

S
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 A
V

E

S
 E

V
A

N
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

S
 E

V
A

N
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 P
L

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

E 81ST ST S

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23605

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

13.5



E 82ND ST S

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

E 81ST ST S

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23606

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

13.6



13.7



13.8



13.9



13.10



Case Number: BOA-23608 

Hearing Date: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Dylan Siers 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: SBWG LLC   

Property Owner: SBWG LLC 

Action Requested: Variance to permit a dynamic display sign in the OL District (Sec. 60.060-E); Variance to allow 
a dynamic display sign within 20-feet of the driving surface (Sec. 60.100-D); Variance to permit a dynamic display 
sign within 200-feet of an R district (Sec. 60.100-F) 

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use: Office     

Tract Size: 0.55 acres 

Location: 7318 S YALE AV E 

Present Zoning: OL 

14.1



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 8309  Case Number: BOA-23608 
CD: 8

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: SBWG LLC 

ACTION REQUESTED: Variance to permit a dynamic display sign in the OL District (Sec. 60.060-E); Variance to 
allow a dynamic display sign within 20-feet of the driving surface (Sec. 60.100-D); Variance to permit a dynamic 
display sign within 200-feet of an R district (Sec. 60.100-F) 

LOCATION: 7318 S YALE AV E ZONED: OL 

PRESENT USE: Office  TRACT SIZE: 24058.29 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: S159.70 E147 & S5 W122.68 LT 1 BLK 1, STACY PARK, SILVER RIDGE CITY OF 
TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as part of a “Local Center“. 

Local Centers serve the daily needs of those in the surrounding neighborhoods. This designation implies that the 
center generally does not serve an area beyond the nearby neighborhoods. Typical uses include commercial or 
retail uses that serve the daily needs of nearby residents. In order to introduce a regional trip generator, the entire 
local center designation should be amended to be Regional Center with significant input from all affected properties 
and nearby neighborhoods. 

STATEMENT OF HARDSHIP: 
1. That the physical surroundings, shape, or topographic conditions of the subject property would result in unnecessary

hardships or practical difficulties  for  the property owner,  as distinguished  from  a mere  inconvenience,  if  the  strict

letter of the regulations were carried out;

a. The north side of the property has a thick section of trees, which hide our building from all who are driving

south on Yale. Central States Research is often hard for patients to find when coming in for a visit.

2. That the literal enforcement of the subject zoning code provision is not necessary to achieve the

provision’s intended purpose;

a. Section 60.100‐F: Dynamic displays may not be located within 200 feet of certain zones, including residential

(R) districts.

i. The dynamic display will not cause any significant disturbance to the nearby residential district. To

minimize any potential impact on the neighboring residential area, the dynamic display will not have

any flashing or strobe lights.

b. Section 60.100‐E: Dynamic displays may not be located within 20 feet of the street curb.

i. The dynamic display will be 14 feet from the street curb, which will be in place of an existing

monument sign. This will be located as far from the curb as possible in that area without compromising

safety, aesthetics, or traffic considerations. The existing sign has had no trouble in the years that it has

been there, and the dynamic sign would not feature any distracting elements such as flashing or strobe

lights.

c. Section 60.060‐E: Dynamic displays are prohibited in Office (O) districts except for certain cases.

i. In an effort to maintain the professional and non‐commercial feel of our office district, the sign will

have a similar look aesthetically as other existing signs nearby. Central States Research conducts

clinical trials and serves a crucial role in public health and medical research. This display will support

14.2



patient recruitment, which in turn helps achieve business objectives without causing undue harm to 

the community or office district. 

3. That the conditions leading to the need of the requested variance are unique to the subject property and not

applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;

a. Section 60.100‐F: Dynamic displays may not be located within 200 feet of certain zones, including residential

(R) districts. Central States Research conducts clinical trials, and patient recruitment directly correlates to the

success of the business. Advertising through a dynamic display in front of the building will be used primarily to

provide important information related to clinical trials and to show which types of trials are being offered at a

given time. Due to the nature of this business, the available clinical trials are changing often. Each study has

different criteria and there are always new studies starting and others closing enrollment. Having the ability to

change the verbiage on the dynamic display to fit current needs will help tremendously. The need for a dynamic

display is unique to this property because it is essential for effectively reaching potential patients and

participants in clinical trials. Central States Research is often the only research site conducting these trials in the

entire state, and even sometimes the entire region, so a dynamic display is a vital means of communication to

inform the public. The trials offered are oftentimes the last options for those who have tried everything else

that they could think of, but many aren’t aware of Central States Research or what they do. The familiarity that

this dynamic display would bring could help tremendously. Without these participants, new drug development

or new indications for existing drugs would not be possible.

3. That the alleged practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship was not created or self‐imposed by the current property

owner;

a. The need for advertising arises from the unique characteristics and requirements of conducting clinical trials.

This is not a choice made by the property owner or Central States Research, but a necessity to effectively

operate a business for clinical trials. The physical hardship of the trees on the north side of the property was

not created or self‐ imposed by the current property owner, as they are large and have likely been there for

several decades.

4. That the variance to be granted is the minimum variance that will afford relief;

a. Central States Research is not requesting any more variances than those that are required. The dynamic

display will serve as an advertising tool that will draw in more participants, which in turn will is a benefit to

the entire community, as our services are completely free.

5. That the variance to be granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood in which the subject

property is located, nor substantially or permanently impair use or development of adjacent property; and

a. The design of the dynamic sign (and all other parts of the sign) will be cohesive with the rest of the office park.

The look and feel of the sign will not stand out and will match nearby signs well. The existing sign that it would

replace matches the other signs in our area, and the new one would as well. If anything, this dynamic sign would

add value to the properties around Central States Research due to an increase in traffic in and  around the office

park. With each person that this dynamic sign brings in, the neighboring properties have greater recognition. It

will also help to differentiate between businesses. Central States Research has people come in extremely often

asking for directions for other buildings in our area. The building just to the south looks very similar, so this sign

is very important. Also, just across South Yale Avenue there is a business that has a dynamic display sign by the

road, which is much larger than what we are requesting.

6. That the variance to be granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes, spirit,

and intent of this zoning code or the comprehensive plan.

a. This dynamic display serves a legitimate and important purpose without unduly burdening the community. The

dynamic display will not have any flashing or strobe lights, so it will not disturb the community (office,

residential, and those in traffic). Being less than 200 feet from a residential district and less than 20 from a

street curb, it is important that the dynamic sign does not feature abrupt flashes of light. Before changing or

updating the dynamic sign, it would be required that the marketing staff of Central States Research consult

the manager and owner. By doing so, the dynamic sign would always abide by these rules.

14.3



STAFF ANALYSIS:  The applicant is requesting a variance to permit a dynamic display sign in the OL District (Sec. 
60.060-E); Variance to allow a dynamic display sign within 20-feet of the driving surface (Sec. 60.100-D); Variance 
to permit a dynamic display sign within 200-feet of an R district (Sec. 60.100-F) 

Facts staff finds favorable for variance request: 
 Existing screening from residential zoned property will help with light pollution to those areas.

Facts Staff find unfavorable for the variance request: 
 None.

SAMPLE MOTION: 
Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Variance to permit a dynamic display sign in the OL District (Sec. 60.060-E); 
Variance to allow a dynamic display sign within 20-feet of the driving surface (Sec. 60.100-D); Variance to permit a 
dynamic display sign within 200-feet of an R district (Sec. 60.100-F) 

Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet 

 Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code and 
will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

14.4



S
 C

A
N

T
O

N
 A

V
E

E 75TH ST S

S
 B

R
A

D
E

N
 A

V
E

S
 U

R
B

A
N

A
 A

V
E

S
 W

IN
S

T
O

N
 P

L

E 72ND ST S

E 72ND PL S

S
 V

A
N

D
A

L
IA

 A
V

E

E 71ST PL S

S
 W

IN
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

E 74TH PL S

E 74TH ST S

E 73RD ST S

E
 7

5T
H

 P
L

 S

S
 T

O
L

E
D

O
 A

V
E

E
 75TH

 S
T S

E 74TH ST S

S
 B

R
A

D
E

N
 A

V
E

E 75TH PL S

PUD-136

PUD-134
PUD-136-A

PUD-289

PUD-190

PUD-208

PUD-190A

PUD-208A

PUD-190D

RS-3

OM

RD

RS-2

OL

OL

OL

S
 Y

A
L

E
 A

V
E

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23606

14.5



S
 C

A
N

T
O

N
 A

V
E

E 75TH ST S

S
 B

R
A

D
E

N
 A

V
E

S
 U

R
B

A
N

A
 A

V
E

S
 W

IN
S

T
O

N
 P

L

E 72ND ST S

E 72ND PL S

S
 V

A
N

D
A

L
IA

 A
V

E

E 71ST PL S

S
 W

IN
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

E 74TH PL S

E 74TH ST S

E 73RD ST S

E
 7

5T
H

 P
L

 S

S
 T

O
L

E
D

O
 A

V
E

E
 75TH

 S
T S

E 74TH ST S

S
 B

R
A

D
E

N
 A

V
E

E 75TH PL S

S
 Y

A
L

E
 A

V
E

E 71ST ST S

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23606

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

14.6



14.7



1 

VARIANCES: The applicant must prove a hardship to the Board. The Board of Adjustment is allowed to 

approve variances only after determining that the following conditions exist. Please describe how your 

request satisfies each of these conditions at the hearing, (You may include a separate page)  

1. That the physical surroundings, shape, or topographic conditions of the subject property would

result in unnecessary hardships or practical difficulties for the property owner, as distinguished

from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out;

a. The north side of the property has a thick section of trees, which hide our building from

all who are driving south on Yale. Central States Research is often hard for patients to

find when coming in for a visit.

2. That the literal enforcement of the subject zoning code provision is not necessary to achieve the

provision’s intended purpose;

a. Section 60.100-F: Dynamic displays may not be located within 200 feet of certain zones,

including residential (R) districts.

i. The dynamic display will not cause any significant disturbance to the nearby

residential district. To minimize any potential impact on the neighboring

residential area, the dynamic display will not have any flashing or strobe lights.

b. Section 60.100-E: Dynamic displays may not be located within 20 feet of the street curb.

i. The dynamic display will be 14 feet from the street curb, which will be in place

of an existing monument sign. This will be located as far from the curb as

possible in that area without compromising safety, aesthetics, or traffic

considerations. The existing sign has had no trouble in the years that it has been

there, and the dynamic sign would not feature any distracting elements such as

flashing or strobe lights.

c. Section 60.060-E: Dynamic displays are prohibited in Office (O) districts except for

certain cases.

i. In an effort to maintain the professional and non-commercial feel of our office

district, the sign will have a similar look aesthetically as other existing signs

nearby. Central States Research conducts clinical trials and serves a crucial role

in public health and medical research. This display will support patient

recruitment, which in turn helps achieve business objectives without causing

undue harm to the community or office district.

3. That the conditions leading to the need of the requested variance are unique to the subject

property and not applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;

a. Section 60.100-F: Dynamic displays may not be located within 200 feet of certain zones,

including residential (R) districts.

i. Central States Research conducts clinical trials, and patient recruitment directly

correlates to the success of the business. Advertising through a dynamic display

in front of the building will be used primarily to provide important information

related to clinical trials and to show which types of trials are being offered at a

given time. Due to the nature of this business, the available clinical trials are

changing often. Each study has different criteria and there are always new

studies starting and others closing enrollment. Having the ability to change the

verbiage on the dynamic display to fit current needs will help tremendously. The

need for a dynamic display is unique to this property because it is essential for

14.8



2 

effectively reaching potential patients and participants in clinical trials. Central 

States Research is often the only research site conducting these trials in the 

entire state, and even sometimes the entire region, so a dynamic display is a 

vital means of communication to inform the public. The trials offered are 

oftentimes the last options for those who have tried everything else that they 

could think of, but many aren’t aware of Central States Research or what they 

do. The familiarity that this dynamic display would bring could help 

tremendously. Without these participants, new drug development or new 

indications for existing drugs would not be possible. 

4. That the alleged practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship was not created or self-imposed by

the current property owner;

a. The need for advertising arises from the unique characteristics and requirements of

conducting clinical trials. This is not a choice made by the property owner or Central

States Research, but a necessity to effectively operate a business for clinical trials. The

physical hardship of the trees on the north side of the property was not created or self-

imposed by the current property owner, as they are large and have likely been there for

several decades.

5. That the variance to be granted is the minimum variance that will afford relief;

a. Central States Research is not requesting any more variances than those that are

required. The dynamic display will serve as an advertising tool that will draw in more

participants, which in turn will is a benefit to the entire community, as our services are

completely free.

6. That the variance to be granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood in

which the subject property is located, nor substantially or permanently impair use or

development of adjacent property; and

a. The design of the dynamic sign (and all other parts of the sign) will be cohesive with the

rest of the office park. The look and feel of the sign will not stand out and will match

nearby signs well. The existing sign that it would replace matches the other signs in our

area, and the new one would as well. If anything, this dynamic sign would add value to

the properties around Central States Research due to an increase in traffic in and

around the office park. With each person that this dynamic sign brings in, the

neighboring properties have greater recognition. It will also help to differentiate

between businesses. Central States Research has people come in extremely often asking

for directions for other buildings in our area. The building just to the south looks very

similar, so this sign is very important. Also, just across South Yale Avenue there is a

business that has a dynamic display sign by the road, which is much larger than what we

are requesting.

7. That the variance to be granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair

the purposes, spirit, and intent of this zoning code or the comprehensive plan.

a. This dynamic display serves a legitimate and important purpose without unduly

burdening the community. The dynamic display will not have any flashing or strobe

lights, so it will not disturb the community (office, residential, and those in traffic). Being

less than 200 feet from a residential district and less than 20 from a street curb, it is

important that the dynamic sign does not feature abrupt flashes of light. Before

14.9



3 

changing or updating the dynamic sign, it would be required that the marketing staff of 

Central States Research consult the manager and owner. By doing so, the dynamic sign 

would always abide by these rules. 

14.10



14.11



4'2"

7'0
"

*Sign will be 18" deep

2'
6

"
1'

6
"

3'
0

"

14.12



S
IG

N
14

 ft fro
m

cu
rb

14.13



REVISED 11/28/2023 

Case Number:  BOA-23609 

Hearing Date:  12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Sean Wallace 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Timothy Boeckman   

Property Owner: South Tulsa Baptist Church 

Action Requested: Minor Special Exception to modify a previously approved site plan for a religious assembly use 
in the RS-3 District (Table 5.020, Table 5-2; Sec.70.120) 

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use: Church     

Tract Size: 19.62 acres 

Location: 10310 S. Sheridan Rd. E 

Present Zoning: RS-3,RM-1 

15.1



E 106TH ST S

E 106TH PL S

E 104TH ST S

S
 6

9T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 100TH ST S

S
 L

A
K

E
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

E 98TH ST S

S
 6

7T
H

 E
 P

L

E 103RD ST S

E 105TH ST S

E 108TH ST S

E 107TH ST S

S
 J

O
P

L
IN

 A
V

E

S
 6

7T
H

 E
 A

V
E

S
 6

6T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 97TH ST S

E 107TH PL S

S
 6

8T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 97TH PL S

S
 K

IN
G

S
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 IR

V
IN

G
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 F

U
LT

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 P

L

S
 N

O
R

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 A

V
E

E 100TH PL S

S
 6

8T
H

 E
 P

L

S
 M

A
P

L
E

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E

E 101ST PL S

E 102ND ST S

E 99TH ST S

E 99TH PL S

E 104TH PL S

E 102ND PL S

S
 O

X
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

S
 G

R
A

N
IT

E
 A

V
E

E
 98T

H
 P

L
 S

S
 7

0T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 103RD PL S

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 P

L

S
 IR

V
IN

G
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 6

7T
H

 E
 A

V
E

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 P

L

E 105TH ST S

E 97TH S
T S

E 105TH ST S

S
 7

0T
H

 E
 A

V
E

S
 6

8T
H

 E
 A

V
E

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 A

V
E

E 97TH ST S

E 106TH PL S

S
 N

O
R

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E

S
 J

O
P

L
IN

 A
V

E

S
 6

9T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 106TH ST S

E 100TH PL S

E 102ND ST S

S
 66TH

 E
 A

V
E

S
 G

R
A

N
IT

E
 A

V
E

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 6

8T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 106TH PL S

E 99TH ST S

S
 6

9T
H

 E
 A

V
E

S
 6

6T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 99TH ST S

E 108TH ST S

E 99TH ST S

E 105TH ST S

E 98TH ST S

S
 6

8T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 108TH ST S

E 107TH ST S

S
 IR

V
IN

G
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 J

O
P

L
IN

 A
V

E

S
 L

A
K

E
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

E 100TH PL S

E 99TH PL S

PUD-207

PUD-486

PUD-741

PUD-836

PUD-420

PUD-741A

PUD-543

PUD-431A

PUD-627

PUD-267

PUD-339

PUD-461

PUD-267-A

PUD-420A

PUD-741B

PUD-431

PUD-337

PUD-431-C

PUD-646

PUD-431B

Z-7704

RS-2

RS-1

RS-2

RS-3

RS-3

RS-1

RS-3

RS-2

AG

RD

RS-2

RS-3

AG

RS-1

CS

CS

CS

CS

AG

RS-1

RM-1

RM-1

RM-1

RS-1

AG

OL

AG

S 
SH

ER
ID

A
N

 R
D

E 101ST ST S

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23609

Subject Tract

15.2



E 106TH ST S

E 106TH PL S

E 104TH ST S

S
 6

9T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 100TH ST S

S
 L

A
K

E
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

E 98TH ST S

S
 6

7T
H

 E
 P

L

E 103RD ST S

E 105TH ST S

E 108TH ST S

E 107TH ST S

S
 6

7T
H

 E
 A

V
E

S
 6

6T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 97TH ST S

S
 6

8T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 97TH PL S

E 107TH PL S

S
 K

IN
G

S
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 IR

V
IN

G
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 J

O
P

L
IN

 A
V

E

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 P

L

S
 N

O
R

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 A

V
E

E 100TH PL S

S
 6

8T
H

 E
 P

L

S
 M

A
P

L
E

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E

E 101ST PL S

E 102ND ST S

E 99TH ST S

E 104TH PL S

E 102ND PL S

S
 O

X
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

E 99TH PL S

E
 98T

H
 P

L
 S

S
 7

0T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 103RD PL S

S
 G

R
A

N
IT

E
 A

V
E

S
 6

9T
H

 E
 A

V
E

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 P

L

S
 6

7T
H

 E
 A

V
E

S
 IR

V
IN

G
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 K

IN
G

S
TO

N
 AV

E

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 P

L

S
 J

O
P

L
IN

 A
V

E

E 105TH ST S

S
 J

O
P

L
IN

 A
V

E

E 99TH ST S

S
 6

8T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 100TH PL S

S
 N

O
R

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E

E 98TH ST S

E 106TH PL S

S
 6

9T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 99TH ST S

E 107TH ST S

E 106TH ST SS
 6

6T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 106TH PL S

E 105TH ST S

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 A

V
E

E 97TH ST S

S
 6

8T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 105TH ST S

E 107TH ST S

S
 6

8T
H

 E
 A

V
E

E 100TH PL S

S
 IR

V
IN

G
T

O
N

 A
V

E

E 102ND ST S

S 
SH

ER
ID

A
N

 R
D

E 101ST ST S

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23609

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

15.3



S
 G

A
R

Y
 P

L

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

E 16TH ST S

E 17TH ST S

RS-3

E 104TH ST S

S
 N

O
R

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E

S
 M

A
P

L
E

W
O

O
D

 A
V

E

E 102ND ST S

S 
SH

ER
ID

A
N

 R
D

E 101ST ST S

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23609 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely

align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

15.4



REVISED 11/28/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 8327 Case Number: BOA-23609 
CD: 8 

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: Timothy Boeckman 

ACTION REQUESTED: Minor Special Exception to modify a previously approved site plan for a religious assembly 
use in the RS-3 District (Table 5.020, Table 5-2; Sec.70.120) 

LOCATION: 10310 S. Sheridan Rd. E ZONED: RS-3,RM-1 

PRESENT USE: Church  TRACT SIZE: 854778.51 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: RES A, B, C SOUTH TULSA BAPTIST CHURCH EXT & RES A & LT 1 BLK 1,SOUTH 
TULSA BAPTIST CHURCH, CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS: 

BOA-21371: Sept. 2013, Board APPROVED a Special Exception to approve a change in previous site plan; Special 
Exception to permit Utility/Communications facility (Use Unit 4) in an RS-3 district (Section 401).  

BOA-19784, Feb. 2004, Board APPROVED a Special Exception to approve a change in a previous site plan; 
Variance of no parking permitted within a required front yard, per plan submitted.   

BOA-19235, Oct. 2001, Board APPROVED an amended site plan to add a 40' x 40' x 12' storage building per plan 
and specifications submitted on 12/11/01 namely that it be located no closer than 120' north of the south property 
line.    

BOA-14497, Jul. 1998, Board APPROVED a special exception to permit church use in a RS-3 zoned district. 
Expansion of church use approved by cases BOA-9182 and BOA-10314. 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as part of a “Neighborhood.” 

Neighborhoods are “Mostly Residential Uses” which includes detached, missing middle, and multi-dwelling unit 
housing types. Churches, schools, and other low-intensity uses that support residents’ daily needs are often 
acceptable, particularly for properties abutting Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional Center land use areas. 
Multi-dwelling unit housing that takes access off of an arterial is considered Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional 
Center. If a multi-dwelling unit housing property takes access off a lower-order street separated from the arterial, 
then it would be considered Neighborhood.   

STAFF ANALYSIS:  Applicant is adding a 2,679 sq ft indoor children’s playground and classroom to the existing 
church building.   

35.040-M Religious Assembly 
Religious services involving public assembly that customarily occur in churches, synagogues, temples, mosques 
and other facilities used for religious worship. 

15.5



REVISED 11/28/2023 

SAMPLE MOTION: 

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to modify a previously approved site plan for a religious 
assembly use in the RS-3 District (Table 5.020, Table 5-2; Sec.70.120). 

• Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

• Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the 
Code and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

(subject property) 

15.6



A1

11/7/2023Date

Drawing Number

CJC Architects, Inc.
1401 S Denver Ave, Suite B

Tulsa, OK 74119-3445
918-582-7129

cjcarchitects.com

Project Title

SITE PLAN

2236

Project Title

Sheet Title

Project Number

Sheet Title

CHILDREN'S
EDUCATION ADDITION

SOUTHTULSA
BAPTIST CHURCH
10310 S. Sheridan Road, Tulsa, OK 74133

40
'-0

"
MI

N.
 T

O
PR

OP
. L

IN
E

NEW ONE STORY ADDITION
2,679 SF

EXISTING SCREEN FENCE

41 PARKING SPACES 
+ 2 HC SPACES

31
 P

AR
KI

NG
 S

PA
CE

S
62

 P
AR

KI
NG

 S
PA

CE
S 

+ 
4 H

C
68

 P
AR

KI
NG

 S
PA

CE
S

14
6 P

AR
KI

NG
 S

PA
CE

S 
+ 

4 H
C 

SP
AC

ES

132 PARKING SPACES 
+ 5 HC SPACES

67 PARKING SPACES 
+ 5 HC SPACES

ORIGINAL:
563 PARKING SPACES 
+ 20 HC SPACES

PROPOSED:
547 PARKING SPACES 
+ 20 HC SPACES

EXST.
PLAYG.

S
 

S
H

E
R

I
D

A
N

 
R

O
A

D

S  1 0 1 S T  E  S T

RS-3

RS-2

RS-3

RS-1

RM-1

CS

RM-1

16,620 sq ft

EXISTING 
TWO STORY

CHURCH 
BUILDING
94,766 SF

10310 S SHERIDAN ROAD

SANCTUARY
1,250 OCCUPANTS

15.7



REVISED 11/28/2023 

Case Number:  BOA-23611 

Hearing Date:  12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Sean Wallace 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: David Brunson   

Property Owner: In His Name Construction LLC 

Action Requested: Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS-3 District (45.031-D); Variance 
to allow the floor area of  detached accessory buildings to exceed 500 square feet and 40% of the floor area of the 
principal residential structure (Section 45.030-A, 45.031-D.6) 

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use: Residential    

Tract Size: 0.16 acres 

Location: 2807 E. 3rd St. S 

Present Zoning: RS-3 

16.1



E ARCHER ST

S
 A

T
L

A
N

TA
 A

V
E

E 4TH PL S

S
 D

E
L

A
W

A
R

E
 A

V
E

E ADMIRAL CT

E 6TH ST S

E 4TH ST S

E 3RD ST S

E 2ND ST S

E ADMIRAL BLVD

S
 G

A
R

Y
 P

L

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

E 8TH ST S

E 5TH PL S

E 7TH ST S

S
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 A
V

E E 1ST ST S

S
 E

V
A

N
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

N
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 A
V

E

W
AV

E
R

LY D
R

S
 C

O
L

U
M

B
IA

 A
V

E

N
 D

E
L

A
W

A
R

E
 A

V
E

N
 A

T
L

A
N

TA
 A

V
E

S
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A

M
 A

V
E S G

A
R

Y
AVE

N
 C

O
L

U
M

B
IA

 A
V

E

N
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

N
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

N
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A

M
 A

V
E

E 5TH ST S

S
 T

U
C

K
E

R
 D

R

E 1ST PL S

N
 A

T
L

A
N

TA
 P

L

E EASTON ST

E HASKELL ST

N
 C

O
L

U
M

B
IA

 P
L

N
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 P

L

N
 D

E
L

A
W

A
R

E
 P

L

N
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A

M
 P

L

E HASKELL ST

S
 C

O
L

U
M

B
IA

 A
V

E

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

E 8TH ST S

E 7TH ST SE 6TH ST S

E 5TH PL S

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

E 4TH PL S

E 4TH ST S

E 1ST ST S

S
 C

O
L

U
M

B
IA

 A
V

E

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

E 2ND ST S

E ADMIRAL BLVD

S
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A

M
 A

V
E

E 5TH PL S

E 2ND ST S

E 5TH ST S

E EASTON ST

PUD-829

PUD-594

Z-7608

Z-7516

Z-7608

£¤412 244

RS-3

RM-2

RM-1

CH

RS-3

CH

RS-3

CS

RD

OMH

CS

CS
OL

IL

RM-1

MX1-U-45

CS OLOL

RM-1

MX2-U-35

RM-2

E ADMIRAL PL

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23611

Subject Tract

16.2



E 3RD ST S

E ARCHER ST

E 1ST ST S

E ADMIRAL CT

S
 D

E
L

A
W

A
R

E
 A

V
E

E 4TH PL S

E ADMIRAL BLVD

E 6TH ST S

E 4TH ST S

E 2ND ST S

S
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 A
V

E

S
 E

V
A

N
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

E 7TH ST S

S
 C

O
L

U
M

B
IA

 A
V

E

S
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A

M
 A

V
E

S G
A

R
Y

AVE

N
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

N
 C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 A
V

E

N
 D

E
L

A
W

A
R

E
 A

V
E

E 5TH PL S

W
AVER

LY D
R

E 5TH ST S

N
 C

O
L

U
M

B
IA

 A
V

E

N
 F

L
O

R
E

N
C

E
 A

V
E

E 1ST PL S

N
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A

M
 A

V
E

S TUCKER DR

E 1ST ST S

E 4TH PL S

E 5TH PL S

S
 C

O
L

U
M

B
IA

 A
V

E
S

 C
O

L
U

M
B

IA
 A

V
E

E 2ND ST S

E ADMIRAL BLVD

E 5TH PL S

E 2ND ST S

E 4TH ST S

E 7TH ST S

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

E 6TH ST S

E 5TH ST S

£¤412 244

E ADMIRAL PL

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23611

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

16.3



S
 G

A
R

Y
 P

L

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

E 16TH ST S

E 17TH ST S

RS-3

E 3RD ST S

S
 D

E
L

A
W

A
R

E
 A

V
E

E 2ND ST S

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23611 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely

align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

16.4



REVISED 11/28/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 9305 Case Number: BOA-23611 
CD: 4 

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: David Brunson 

ACTION REQUESTED: Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS-3 District (45.031-D); 
Variance to allow the floor area of  detached accessory buildings to exceed 500 square feet and 40% of the floor 
area of the principal residential structure (Section 45.030-A, 45.031-D.6) 

LOCATION: 2807 E. 3rd St. S ZONED: RS-3 

PRESENT USE: Residential TRACT SIZE: 6751.83 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: E 1/2 LT 6 BLK 5, PLEASANT VIEW ADDN CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE 
OF OKLAHOMA 

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  None. 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as part of a “Neighborhood.” 

Neighborhoods are “Mostly Residential Uses” which includes detached, missing middle, and multi-dwelling unit 
housing types. Churches, schools, and other low-intensity uses that support residents’ daily needs are often 
acceptable, particularly for properties abutting Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional Center land use areas. 
Multi-dwelling unit housing that takes access off of an arterial is considered Multiple Use, Local Center, or 
Regional Center. If a multi-dwelling unit housing property takes access off of a lower-order street separated 
from the arterial, then it would be considered Neighborhood. 

STAFF ANALYSIS:  The applicant is requesting a Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an 
RS-3 District (45.031-D); Variance to allow the floor area of detached accessory buildings to exceed 500 square 
feet and 40% of the floor area of the principal residential structure (Section 45.030-A; 45.031-D.6).  
A copy of sections 45.030 and 45.031 are included in your packet. 

Table 90-2: Accessory Building, Including Accessory Dwelling Units, Coverage Limits in Rear Setback 
Zoning District Maximum Coverage of Rear Setback 
RS-1 and RE Districts 20% 
RS-2 District 25% 
RS-3, RS-4, RS-5 and RD Districts 30% 
RM zoned Lots Used for Detached Houses or Duplexes 30% 

16.5



REVISED 11/28/2023 

(subject property) 

SAMPLE MOTION: 

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS-3 District 
(45.031-D).  

• Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

• Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the 
Code and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

16.6



REVISED 11/28/2023 

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Variance to allow the floor area of  detached accessory buildings to exceed 
500 square feet and 40% of the floor area of the principal residential structure (Section 45.030-A, 45.031-D.6).  

• Finding the hardship(s) to be________________________________.

• Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

• Subject to the following conditions ___________________________.

In granting the Variance the Board finds that the following facts, favorable to the property owner, have 
been established:  

a. That the physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of the subject property would
result in unnecessary hardships or practical difficulties for the property owner, as distinguished
from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out;

b. That literal enforcement of the subject zoning code provision is not necessary to achieve the
provision’s intended purpose;

c. That the conditions leading to the need of the requested variance are unique to the subject
property and not applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;

d. That the alleged practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship was not created or self-imposed by
the current property owner;

e. That the variance to be granted is the minimum variance that will afford relief;

f. That the variance to be granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood in
which the subject property is located, nor substantially or permanently impair use or development
of adjacent property; and

g. That the variance to be granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair
the purposes, spirit, and intent of this zoning code or the comprehensive plan.”

16.7



16.8



16.9



16.10



16.11



16.12



16.13



16.14



16.15



REVISED 11/29/2023 

Case Number:   BOA-23612 

Hearing Date:   12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Sean Wallace 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Nathan Cross   

Property Owner: Greenhill Properties, LLC 

Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a Mining and Mineral Processing Use in the IM District (Sec. 
15.020; Table 15-2)  

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use: Vacant    

Tract Size: 80.69 acres 

Location:  
East of Highway 169 between 46th St. N. and 
56th St. N.  

Present Zoning: IM 

17.1



E 50TH ST N

N
 1

21
S

T
 E

 A
V

E

N
 118T

H
 E

 A
V

E

£¤169

AG

AG

IM

IM IH

AG

IL

AG

IL

IM

IL

IL

IL

E 56TH ST N

N
 G

A
R

N
E

T
T

 R
D

N
 G

A
R

N
E

T
T

 R
D

N
 1

29
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23612

Subject Tract

17.2



E 50TH ST N

N
 1

21
S

T
 E

 A
V

E

N
 118T

H
 E

 A
V

E

£¤169

E 56TH ST N

N
 G

A
R

N
E

T
T

 R
D

N
 G

A
R

N
E

T
T

 R
D

N
 1

29
T

H
 E

 A
V

E

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23612

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

17.3



S
 G

A
R

Y
 P

L

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

E 16TH ST S

E 17TH ST S

RS-3

N
 1

21
S

T
 E

 A
V

E

E 50TH ST N

E 56TH ST N

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23612 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely

align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

17.4



REVISED 11/29/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 261 Case Number: BOA-23612 
CD: 3 

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: Nathan Cross 

ACTION REQUESTED: Special Exception to permit a Mining and Mineral Processing Use in the IM District (Sec. 
15.020; Table 15-2)  

LOCATION: East of Highway 169 between 46th St. N and 56th St. N 
ZONED: IM 

PRESENT USE: Vacant TRACT SIZE: 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: See attached. 

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:   

Z-7705, on 5.17.23 the TMAPC approved a re-zoning of the property from AG to IM.

BOA-20800, on 10.28.08 the Board approved a special exception to permit a Rock Quarry in an AG district. 

BOA-19674, on 9.23.03 the Board approved a special exception to permit within an 80 acre tract in the IH and AG 
zoning districts, the mining, quarrying and extraction of stone, sand and gravel for utilization off the premises.  

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as part of a “Regional Center.” 

Existing regional trip generators define the Regional Centers in contrast to Local Centers. These centers 
should be the most connected land use pockets outside of downtown for public transit access and 
high-capacity arterial streets. New regional trip generators should be permitted in the area with special 
consideration given to transportation access and circulation. Regional trip generators include universities, 
malls, large medical campuses, casinos, big-box shopping centers, and very large churches.   

The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan also identifies the subject property as part of an “Employment” center. 

The employment designation is intended to accommodate offices, warehousing and storage, manufacturing 
and assembly, and industrial processes. The “Industrial Site Suitability” map corresponds to the Employment 
land use designation and indicates where uses that are potentially incompatible with sensitive land uses are 
best suited to locate. This directs industrial uses to particular areas of the city while discouraging industrial in 
close proximity to Neighborhood areas. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant is requesting a special exception to permit a Mining and Mineral Processing Use 
in the IM District (Sec. 15.020; Table 15-2).   

17.5



REVISED 11/29/2023 

SAMPLE MOTION: 

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to permit a Mining and Mineral Processing Use in the IM 
District (Sec. 15.020; Table 15-2).  

• Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

• Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the 
Code and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

(subject property looking south from 56th St N)

17.6



REVISED 11/29/2023 

Chapter 15 | Office, Commercial and Industrial Districts 

USE CATEGORY Supplemental 
Regulations Subcategory 

Specific use 
OL OM OMH OH CS CG CH CBD IL IM IH 

Financial Services (except as below) P P P P P P P P P P P 
Personal credit establishment – – – – P P P P P P P Section 40.300 

Funeral or Mortuary Service P P P P P P P P P P P Section 40.150 
Lodging 

Bed & breakfast S S S S P P P P S S S Section 40.060 
Short-term rental P P P P P P P P P P P Section 40.375 
Campgrounds and RV parks – – – – S P P P P P P 
Hotel/motel – – S S P P P P S S S Section 40.170 

Marina S S S S S S S S S S S 
Office Section 40.260 

Business or professional office P P P P P P P P P P P 
Medical, dental or health practitioner 
office 

P P P P P P P P P P P 

Plasma center – – – – P P P P P P P Section 40.300 
Parking, Non-accessory P P P P P P P P P P P 

Restaurants and Bars 
Restaurant P[1] P[1] P[1] P P P P P P P P Section 40.330 
Bar (except as below) – – – – P[2] P[2] P[2] P[2] S S S Section 40.050 

Brewpub – – – – S S S P[2] S S S Section 40.050 
Retail Sales Section 40.340 

Building supplies and equipment – – – – P P P P P P P 
Consumer shopping goods – S[3] S[3] P[3] P P P P P P P 
Convenience goods – S[3] S[3] P[3] P P P P P P P Section 40.300 
Grocery Store _ S[3,6] S[3,6] S[3,6] P P P P P P P 
Small Box Discount Store - S[3,6] S[3,6] S[3,6] P[6] P[6] P[6] P[6] P[6] P[6] P[6]  
Medical Marijuana Dispensary – – – – P P P P P P P Section 40.225 

Self-service Storage Facility S S S S S P P P P P P Section 40.360 
Sexually Oriented Business Establishment – – – – P P P P S S S Section 40.370 
Studio, Artist or Instructional Service P P P P P P P P P P P Section 40.380 
Trade School – S S S S P P P P P P 
Vehicle Sales and Service Section 40.400 

Commercial vehicle repair/maintenance – – – – S P P P P P P 
Truck stop – – – – – S S – P P P 

Commercial vehicle sales and rentals – – – – S P P P P P P 
Fueling station – – – – P P P P P P P 
Personal vehicle repair and maintenance – – – – P P P P P P P 
Personal vehicle sales and rentals – – – – S P P P P P P 
Vehicle part and supply sales – – – – P P P P P P P 
Vehicle body and paint finishing shop – – – – S P P P P P P 

WHOLESALE, DIS TRIB. & 
STORAGE 

Section 40.410 

Equip. & Materials Storage, Outdoor – – – – S P P P P P P 
Trucking and Transportation Terminal – – – – S P P P P P P 
Warehouse – – – – S P P P P P P 
Wholesale Sales and Distribution – – – – S P P P P P P 
INDUSTRIAL Section 40.180 
Low-impact Manufacturing & Industry – – – – – S S S P P P 

Moderate-impact Manufacturing & 
Industry 

– – – – – – – – S P P Section 40.225 

High-impact Manufacturing & Industry – – – – – – – – – S P 
Mining or Mineral Processing – – – – – – – – – S S Section 40.230 
Junk or Salvage Yard – – – – – – – – – S P Section 40.190 

17.7



17.8



17.9



17.10



REVISED 11/29/2023 

Case Number:  BOA-23613 

Hearing Date:  12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Sean Wallace 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Alan Betchan   

Property Owner: Quiktrip Corp. 

Action Requested: Variance to permit a dynamic display sign to exceed 48 square feet (Sec. 60.080-E); 

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use: Convenience Store 

Tract Size: 1.16 acres 

Location: 4948 E. Admiral Pl.  

Present Zoning: CH 

18.1



E 5TH PL S

E 4TH PL S

E 3RD ST S

E 2ND ST S

E 4TH ST S

E ARCHER ST

E ADMIRAL BLVD

N
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 A

V
E

N
 D

A
R

L
IN

G
T

O
N

 A
V

E

E 5TH ST S

S
 A

L
L

E
G

H
E

N
Y

 A
V

E

S
 D

A
R

L
IN

G
T

O
N

 A
V

E

N
 R

IC
H

M
O

N
D

 A
V

E

N
 S

A
N

D
U

S
K

Y
 A

V
E

E 6TH ST S

S
 R

IC
H

M
O

N
D

 A
V

E

S
 Z

U
R

IC
H

 A
V

E
N

B
R

A
D

E
N

A
V

E

E KING ST

E INDEPENDENCE ST

N
 IR

V
IN

G
T

O
N

 A
V

E

E 2ND PL S

S
 F

U
LT

O
N

 A
V

E

E EASTON ST

S
 T

O
L

E
D

O
 A

V
E

S
 U

R
B

A
N

A
 A

V
E

E HASKELL ST

E HASKELL PL

S
 S

A
N

D
U

S
K

Y
 A

V
E

E 4TH TER

E JASPER ST

N
 U

R
B

A
N

A
 A

V
E

N
 E

R
IE

 P
L

S
 V

A
N

D
A

L
IA

 A
V

E

N
 E

R
IE

 A
V

E

N
 F

U
LT

O
N

 A
V

E

N
C

A
N

T
O

N
A

V
E

UNKNOWN

E 1ST ST S

E ADMIRAL CT

E CAMERON ST

S
E

R
IE

A
V

E

N
 W

IN
S

T
O

N
 A

V
E

N
 T

O
L

E
D

O
 A

V
E

N
 A

L
L

E
G

H
E

N
Y

 A
V

E

N
T

O
L

E
D

O
A

V
E

E KING ST

E INDEPENDENCE ST

E 2ND ST S

E 5TH ST S

S
 T

O
L

E
D

O
 A

V
E

E 6TH ST S

N
 F

U
LT

O
N

 A
V

E

E INDEPENDENCE ST

E 4TH TER

E 4TH ST S

N
 S

A
N

D
U

S
K

Y
 A

V
E

S
 V

A
N

D
A

L
IA

 A
V

E

UNKNOWN

£¤412 244

RS-3

RS-3

RS-2

IL

RS-3

CH

IM

IL

RS-3

RS-3 IL
IL

OM

RD

CH

CG CSCH

IL

PKCH

CS

OL

RM-2

IL

CS

RM-1

RM-1

RS-3

E ADMIRAL PL

N
 Y

A
L

E
 A

V
E

S
 Y

A
L

E
 A

V
E

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23613

Subject Tract

18.2



E 5TH PL S

E 4TH PL S

E 3RD ST S

E 2ND ST S

E 4TH ST S

E ARCHER ST

E ADMIRAL BLVD

N
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 H

U
D

S
O

N
 A

V
E

N
 D

A
R

L
IN

G
T

O
N

 A
V

E

E 5TH ST S

S
A

L
L

E
G

H
E

N
Y

A
V

E

N
 B

R
A

D
E

N
 A

V
E

S
 D

A
R

L
IN

G
T

O
N

 A
V

E

N
 S

A
N

D
U

S
K

Y
 A

V
E

S
 F

U
LT

O
N

 A
V

E

E INDEPENDENCE ST

E EASTON ST

S
 Z

U
R

IC
H

 A
V

E

S
 T

O
L

E
D

O
 A

V
E

S
 U

R
B

A
N

A
 A

V
E

E HASKELL ST

E HASKELL PL

E 2ND PL S

S
 S

A
N

D
U

S
K

Y
 A

V
E

S
 V

A
N

D
A

L
IA

 A
V

E

E 4TH TER

E JASPER ST

N
 E

R
IE

 P
L

N
 E

R
IE

 A
V

E

UNKNOWN

N
 F

U
LT

O
N

 A
V

E

E ADMIRAL CT

E CAMERON ST

N
 C

A
N

T
O

N
 A

V
E

N
 T

O
L

E
D

O
 A

V
E

N
 A

L
L

E
G

H
E

N
Y

 A
V

E

E 2ND ST S

N
T

O
L

E
D

O
A

V
E E INDEPENDENCE ST

UNKNOWN

N
 F

U
LT

O
N

 A
V

E

N
 S

A
N

D
U

S
K

Y
 A

V
E

S
 V

A
N

D
A

L
IA

 A
V

E

S
 T

O
L

E
D

O
 A

V
E

E 4TH ST S

E 5TH ST S

E 4TH TER

£¤412 244

E ADMIRAL PL

N
 Y

A
L

E
 A

V
E

S
 Y

A
L

E
 A

V
E

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23613

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

18.3



S
 G

A
R

Y
 P

L

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

E 16TH ST S

E 17TH ST S

RS-3

E ADMIRAL BLVD

N
 A

L
L

E
G

H
E

N
Y

 A
V

E

£¤412
244

E ADMIRAL PL

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23613 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely

align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

18.4



REVISED 11/29/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 9303 Case Number: BOA-23613 
CD: 3 

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: Alan Betchan 

ACTION REQUESTED: Variance to permit a dynamic display sign to exceed 48 square feet (Sec. 60.080-E); 

LOCATION: 4948 E. Admiral Pl.  ZONED: CH 

PRESENT USE: Convenience  Store  TRACT SIZE: 50614.23 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lot 2 Block 1, QUIKTRIP NO 0007 CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF 

OKLAHOMA 

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  None. 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as “Multiple-Use.” 

Multiple Use areas are “Mostly Commercial or Retail Uses” which include restaurants, shops, services, and 
smaller format employment uses. This land use designation is most common in areas of the city from earlier 
development patterns, with Local Centers being more commonplace in newer parts of the city. For single 
properties that are commercial but surrounded by Neighborhood, Multiple Use is the preferred designation. 

STATEMENT OF HARDSHIP: 

Please describe how your hardship meets the following criteria: 

1. That the physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of the subject property would
result in unnecessary hardships or practical difficulties for the property owner, as distinguished
from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out; Static digital
pricing is the industry standard for signage along major highways.

2. That literal enforcement of the subject zoning code provision is not necessary to achieve the
provision’s intended purpose; The static nature of the proposed pricer is equivalent to a non-
dynamic display.

3. That the conditions leading to the need of the requested variance are unique to the subject
property and not applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification; The
location at the site with respect to the highway and the general character of the use make the case
unique among similarly zoned parcels.

4. That the alleged practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship was not created or self-imposed by
the current property owner; A literal interpretation of the code will require an outdated mechanical
pricer. The code inadvertently captures long term static digital displays in its definition of a dynamic
display.

5. That the variance to be granted is the minimum variance that will afford relief; Allowing a digital
pricer of 192 square feet affords the minimum relief available.

18.5



REVISED 11/29/2023 

6. That the variance to be granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood in
which the subject property is located, nor substantially or permanently impair use or development
of adjacent property; and The static nature of the display will not significantly impact surrounding
properties.

7. That the variance to be granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair
the purposes, spirit, and intent of this zoning code or the comprehensive plan.” The static nature of
the sign is substantially similar to the signage specifically authorized by the code.

STAFF ANALYSIS:  Applicant is requesting a variance to allow a dynamic display sign of 192 sq ft. 

60.080-E Dynamic Displays on On-premise Wall, Projecting and Freestanding Signs 
A maximum of one of the on-premise wall signs, projecting signs or freestanding signs allowed on a lot in 
a mixed-use, commercial or industrial zoning district may include a dynamic display. The dynamic display 
may not exceed the maximum sign area allowed for the respective sign type or 48 square feet, whichever 
is less. The sign area allowed for a dynamic display is not in addition to the maximum sign area allowed 
for a wall, projecting or freestanding sign, but rather is counted as part of the maximum area of the wall, 
projecting or freestanding sign. Only one, contiguous dynamic display is allowed on a wall, projecting or 
freestanding sign face. Off-premise outdoor advertising signs that incorporate a dynamic display are 

 subject to the dynamic display regulations of Section 60.100. 

(subject property) 

18.6



REVISED 11/29/2023 

Sample Motion:  

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a dynamic display sign to exceed 48 square feet. 

• Finding the hardship(s) to be________________________________.

• Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

• Subject to the following conditions ___________________________.

In granting the Variance the Board finds that the following facts, favorable to the property owner, have been 
established:  

a. That the physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of the subject property would result in
unnecessary hardships or practical difficulties for the property owner, as distinguished from a mere
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out;

b. That literal enforcement of the subject zoning code provision is not necessary to achieve the provision’s
intended purpose;

c. That the conditions leading to the need of the requested variance are unique to the subject property and
not applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;

d. That the alleged practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship was not created or self-imposed by the
current property owner;

e. That the variance to be granted is the minimum variance that will afford relief;

f. That the variance to be granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood in which the
subject property is located, nor substantially or permanently impair use or development of adjacent property;
and

g. That the variance to be granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the
purposes, spirit, and intent of this zoning code or the comprehensive plan.”

18.7



18.8



18.9



18.10



18.11



18.12



18.13



REVISED 11/28/2023 

Case Number:   BOA-23614 

Hearing Date:    12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Sean Wallace 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Mark Capron   

Property Owner: YMCA OF GREATER TULSA 

Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a Large Assembly and Entertainment Use (greater than 250-person 
capacity) in the CH District (Sec. 15.020, Table 15-2) 

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use: Vacant     

Tract Size: 2.29 acres 

Location: 909 W. 23rd St. S 

Present Zoning: CH 

19.1



W 23RD ST S

S
O

U
T

H
W

E
S

T
 B

LV
D

F
R

O
N

TA
G

E

S
 JA

C
K

S
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 N

O
G

A
L

E
S

 A
V

E

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
 PA

TH
 W

W 17TH ST S

W 25TH ST S

S
 O

LY
M

P
IA

 A
V

E

W 22ND ST S

W 24TH ST S

S
 R

O
S

E
D

A
L

E
 A

V
E

TA
C

O
M

A

W 19TH ST S

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
D

RIVERSIDE DR

S WACO AVE

S
 P

H
O

E
N

IX
 A

V
E

S
 M

A
Y

B
E

L
L

E
 A

V
E

W 24TH PL S

W 23RD PL S

W 22ND PL S

W 20TH ST S

W 21ST ST S

W 18TH ST S

W 20TH PL S

W 17TH PL S

W 25TH PL S

W 18TH ST S

W 19TH ST S

S
 P

H
O

E
N

IX
 A

V
E

W 20TH ST S

F
R

O
N

TA
G

E W 19TH ST S

S
 P

H
O

E
N

IX
 A

V
E

S
 O

LY
M

P
IA

 A
V

E

W 24TH ST S

W 20TH ST S

£¤75

244

IH

IM

IM

AG

IL

OM

RS-3

CH

RS-3

RS-3

AG

MX1-U-55

IL

IL

RM-2

RS-3

IM

RM-1

RM-1

IL

RM-3

CH

CS

RM-1

OM

IM

CS

OL

CH CS

RM-3
CS

RM-2

IL

RM-1

W 21ST ST SW 21ST ST SW 21ST ST S

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23614

Subject Tract

19.2



W 23RD ST S

S
O

U
T

H
W

E
S

T
 B

LV
D

F
R

O
N

TA
G

E

S
 JA

C
K

S
O

N
 A

V
E

S
 N

O
G

A
L

E
S

 A
V

E

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
 PA

TH
 W

W 17TH ST S

W 25TH ST S

S
 O

LY
M

P
IA

 A
V

E

W 22ND ST S

W 24TH ST S

S
 R

O
S

E
D

A
L

E
 A

V
E

TA
C

O
M

A

W 19TH ST S

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
D

RIVERSIDE DR

S
 P

H
O

E
N

IX
 A

V
E

S WACO AVE

S
 M

A
Y

B
E

L
L

E
 A

V
E

W 24TH PL S

W 23RD PL S

W 22ND PL S

W 20TH ST S

W 21ST ST S

W 18TH ST S

W 20TH PL S

W 17TH PL S

W 25TH PL S

W 18TH ST S

W 19TH ST S

S
 P

H
O

E
N

IX
 A

V
E

W 20TH ST S

F
R

O
N

TA
G

E W 19TH ST S

S
 P

H
O

E
N

IX
 A

V
E

S
 O

LY
M

P
IA

 A
V

E

W 24TH ST S

W 20TH ST S

£¤75

244

W 21ST ST SW 21ST ST SW 21ST ST S

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23614

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

19.3



S
 G

A
R

Y
 P

L

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

E 16TH ST S

E 17TH ST S

RS-3

W 23RD ST S

S
 N

O
G

A
L

E
S

 A
V

E
S

 M
A

Y
B

E
L

L
E

 A
V

E

W 22ND PL S

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23614 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely

align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

19.4



REVISED 11/28/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 9214 Case Number: BOA-23614 
CD: 2 

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: Mark Capron 

ACTION REQUESTED: Special Exception to permit a Large Assembly and Entertainment Use (greater than 250-
person capacity) in the CH District (Sec. 15.020, Table 15-2). 

LOCATION: 909 W. 23rd St. S ZONED: CH 

PRESENT USE: Vacant  TRACT SIZE: 99552.43 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: See attached.  

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  None. 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as “Multiple Use.” 

Multiple Use areas are “Mostly Commercial or Retail Uses” which include restaurants, shops, services, and smaller 
format employment uses. This land use designation is most common in areas of the city from earlier development 
patterns, with Local Centers being more commonplace in newer parts of the city. For single properties that are 
commercial but surrounded by Neighborhood, Multiple Use is the preferred designation.   

STAFF ANALYSIS:   

Assembly and Entertainment uses are described in the Tulsa Zoning Code as follows: 

Uses that provide gathering places for participant or spectator recreation, entertainment or other assembly activities. 
Assembly and entertainment uses may provide incidental food or beverage service. Typical uses include gun clubs, 
shooting ranges, health clubs, gymnasiums, riding stables and academies, banquet halls, entertainment centers, 
event centers, billiard centers, bowling centers, cinemas, go-cart tracks, laser tag, paintball, miniature golf courses, 
stadiums, arenas, video arcades, race-tracks, fairgrounds, rodeo grounds, water parks, amusement parks, food 
truck courts, and live theaters. Outdoor seating and dining areas that exceed 50% of the indoor floor area of the 
subject principal use (e.g., bar, restaurant or indoor assembly and entertainment use) are regulated as an outdoor 
assembly and entertainment use. 

19.5



REVISED 11/28/2023 

(subject property) 

SAMPLE MOTION: 

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to permit a Large Assembly and Entertainment Use 
(greater than 250-person capacity) in the CH District (Sec. 15.020, Table 15-2). 

• Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

• Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code and 
will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

19.6



View 1

19.7



View 2

19.8



View 3

19.9



View 4

19.10



View 5

19.11



View 6

19.12



View 7

19.13



View 8

19.14



View 9

19.15



19.16



REVISED 11/28/2023 

Case Number:   BOA-23616 

Hearing Date:    12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Sean Wallace 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Nathan Cross   

Property Owner: Zebra Development LLC 

Action Requested: Special Exception to expand a previously approved self-storage facility in the CS district (Sec. 
15.020, Sec.15.020) 

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use: self-storage    

Tract Size: 11.42 acres 

Location: 2817 N. Peoria Ave. 

Present Zoning: CS 

20.1



N
L

A
N

S
IN

G
P

L

MOHAWK BLVD

N
 Q

U
IN

C
Y

 A
V

E

N
 T

R
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

EN
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

N
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

N
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

E 33RD ST N

E ZION ST

E
YO

UNG
ST

UNKNOWN

E ZION PL

E 31ST PL N

N
 L

A
N

S
IN

G
 A

V
E

N
M

ID
L

A
N

D
A

V
E

E YOUNG PL

N
 U

T
IC

A
 A

V
E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
D

N
 W

H
E

E
L

IN
G

 A
V

E

N
 M

A
D

IS
O

N
 A

V
E

E 32ND ST N

E 28TH ST N

E 27TH ST N

E 26TH PL N

E 27TH PL N

E ZION CT

N
 N

O
R

F
O

L
K

 A
V

E

N
 O

W
A

S
S

O
 A

V
E

E 32ND PL N

E 31ST ST N

E 30TH ST N

N
 T

R
O

O
S

T
 A

V
E

N
 T

R
O

O
S

T
 P

L

PARKING
LO

T

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
D

E 26TH PL N

E YOUNG ST

E 27TH ST N

N
L

A
N

S
IN

G
A

V
E

MOHAWK BLVD

E
YOUNG

PL

E 32ND ST N

E 28TH ST N

N
 N

O
R

F
O

L
K

 A
V

E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
D

N
 M

A
D

IS
O

N
 A

V
E

E ZION ST

N
 U

T
IC

A
 A

V
E

E 26TH PL N

PUD-487

Z-7367

Gilcrease

IM

RS-3

RS-3

IL

AG

RS-3

CS

IM

AG

RS-3

RS-4

RS-3

CHIM

IL

RS-3

RS-3

IL

IL

CS

RM-1

CHIL

CH

CS

CHOL

RS-4

CH

CG

CG

CS

RMH

OL

CS

OL

RM-1

AG

RS-4

CH

IL

CS
CH

CG

IL

OL

CS

OL

OL

RM-1

CS
CS

CS

N
 P

E
O

R
IA

 A
V

E

E APACHE ST

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23616

Subject Tract

20.2



N
L

A
N

S
IN

G
P

L

MOHAWK BLVD

N
 Q

U
IN

C
Y

 A
V

E

N
 T

R
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

EN
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

N
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

N
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

E 33RD ST N

E ZION ST

E
YO

UNG
ST

UNKNOWN

E ZION PL

E 31ST PL N

N
 L

A
N

S
IN

G
 A

V
E

N
M

ID
L

A
N

D
A

V
E

E YOUNG PL

N
 U

T
IC

A
 A

V
E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
D

N
 W

H
E

E
L

IN
G

 A
V

E

N
 M

A
D

IS
O

N
 A

V
E

E 28TH ST N

E 27TH ST N

E 26TH PL N

E 32ND ST N

E 27TH PL N

E ZION CT

N
 N

O
R

F
O

L
K

 A
V

E

N
 O

W
A

S
S

O
 A

V
E

E 32ND PL N

E 31ST ST N

E 30TH ST N

N
 T

R
O

O
S

T
 A

V
E

N
 T

R
O

O
S

T
 P

L

PARKING
LO

T

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
D

E 32ND ST N

E YOUNG ST

N
L

A
N

S
IN

G
A

V
E

MOHAWK BLVD

E
YOUNG

PL

E 28TH ST N

E 27TH ST N

E 26TH PL N

N
 N

O
R

F
O

L
K

 A
V

E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
D

N
 M

A
D

IS
O

N
 A

V
E

E ZION ST

N
 U

T
IC

A
 A

V
E

E 26TH PL N

Gilcrease

N
 P

E
O

R
IA

 A
V

E

E APACHE ST

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23616

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

20.3



S
 G

A
R

Y
 P

L

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

E 16TH ST S

E 17TH ST S

RS-3

E 28TH ST N

N
 Q

U
IN

C
Y

 A
V

E

N
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

N
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 R
D

Gilcrease

N
P

E
O

R
IA

A
V

E

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23616 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely

align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

20.4



REVISED 11/28/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 0319 Case Number: BOA-23616 
CD: 1 

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: Nathan Cross 

ACTION REQUESTED: Special Exception to expand a previously approved self-storage facility in the CS district 
(Sec. 15.020, Sec.15.020) 

LOCATION: 2817 N. Peoria Ave. ZONED: CS 

PRESENT USE: Self-storage TRACT SIZE: 497653.26 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: See attached 

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:   

BOA-22401: Feb, 2018, Board APPROVED a Special Exception to allow a self-storage facility in a CS zoned 
district. 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as “Multiple Use.” 

Multiple Use areas are “Mostly Commercial or Retail Uses” which include restaurants, shops, services, and smaller 
format employment uses. This land use designation is most common in areas of the city from earlier development 
patterns, with Local Centers being more commonplace in newer parts of the city. For single properties that are 
commercial but surrounded by Neighborhood, Multiple Use is the preferred designation. 

STAFF ANALYSIS:  The applicant is seeking to expand an existing self-storage facility. The self-storage 
facility is only allowed by Special Exception in the CS district.  

Section 40.360  Self-Service Storage Facilities 
 40.360-A General 

• The general provisions of this section apply to all self-service storage facilities. A screening
fence or masonry wall is required along all lot lines that abut R- or AG-R- zoned lots.
Required screening fences and walls must be at least 8 feet in height. If buildings are
masonry, the building wall can serve as the screening wall, provided that any open spaces
between perimeter buildings are screened with a masonry screening wall at least 8 feet in
height. The screening fence/wall requirements of this section do not apply to climate- 
controlled self-storage buildings in which self-storage spaces are accessed only from within
the building.

20.5



REVISED 11/28/2023 

(subject property) 

 (subject property) 

SAMPLE MOTION: 

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a special exception to expand a previously approved self-storage facility in a 

CS District. • Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the 
agenda packet.

• Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):
______________________________________________.

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code and 
will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 
abutting   R, O, or AG-R districts or from any street rights-of-way. 

20.6



EXHIBIT “A” 

SW/4), in Section Nineteen (19), Township Twenty (20) North, Range Thirteen 
(13)East of the Indian Base and Meridian, Tulsa County, State of Oklahoma,
according to the U. S. Government Survey thereof, being more particularly
described as follows:

Commencing at the Northwest corner of U.S. Government Lot Three (3), also being 
the West Quarter corner of Section Nineteen (19), Township Twenty (20) North 
Range Thirteen (13) East of the Indian Meridian, a chiseled "X"; thence South 
00°00'00" West along the West line of the SW/4 of Section Nineteen (19) a distance 
of 1319.73 feet to the Southwest corner of U.S. Government Lot Three (3); thence 
North 89°19'03" East along the South line of U.S. Government Lot Three (3) a 
distance of 100.01 feet to a point that is 100.00 feet measured perpendicular from 
the West line of the SW/4 of Section Nineteen (19), being the East Right of Way for 
Peoria Avenue, the Point of Beginning; thence North 00°00'00" East along the East 
Right of Way for Peoria Avenue a distance of 527.32 feet; thence North 89°41'03" 
East along the East Right of Way for Peoria Avenue, a distance of 10.00 feet; thence 
North 89°18'59" East along the South Right of Way for "Gilcrease Expressway", a 
distance of 1057.18 feet to the East line of U.S. Government Lot Three thence South 
00°03'35" East along the East line of U.S. Government Lot Three (3) a distance of 
527.27 feet to the Southeast corner of U.S. Government Lot Three (3); thence South 
89°19'03" West along the South line of U.S. Government Lot Three (3) a distance 
of 1067.73 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

LESS AND EXCEPT: 

Commencing at the Northwest corner of U.S. Government Lot Three (3), also being 
the West Quarter corner of Section Nineteen (19), Township Twenty (20) North, 
Range Thirteen (13) East of the Indian Meridian, a chiseled "Y"; thence South 
00°00'00" West along the West line of the SW/4 of Section Nineteen (19), a distance 
of 1228.54 feet; thence North 90°00'00" East a distance of 100.00 feet to the East 
Right- of-Way for Peoria Avenue, the Point of Beginning; thence North 00°00'00" 
East along the East Right-of-Way for Peoria Avenue a distance of 186.00 feet; 
thence North 90°00'00" East a distance of 235.00 feet; thence South 00°00'00" West 
a distance of 186.00 feet; thence South 90°00'00" W a distance of 235.00 feet to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 

8123021.1 

20.7



28TH STREET
(50' PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY)

S 00°00'00" W
  1,319.73' (R

)
S 01°08'57" E  1,319.63' (M

)

S 00°00'00" W
  1,228.54' (R

)

S 01°08'57" E  1,228.32' (M
)

N
 00°00'00" E  186.00' (R

)

N 90°00'00" E  235.00' (R)

N 89°18'59" E  1,057.18' (R)

S 89°19'03" W  1,067.73' (R)

P.O.B.
3/8" CIRF

"LACY 1666"

LESS AND EXCEPT FROM DOC.
# 2018016411
O.P.R.T.C.O.

THE RORY A. MURPHY
REVOCABLE TRUST OF 2016

DOC. # 2020005748
O.P.R.T.C.O.

N 89°41'03" E
10.00' (R)

EAST LINE OF U.S.
GOVERNMENT LOT 3

WEST LINE OF U.S.
GOVERNMENT LOT 3

GILCREASE EXPRESSWAY
(VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY)

N
O

R
TH

 PEO
R

IA AVEN
U

E
(VAR

IABLE W
ID

TH
 PU

BLIC
 R

IG
H

T-O
F-W

AY)

SOUTH LINE OF U.S.
GOVERNMENT LOT 3

N 88°10'06" E  100.32' (M)

S 01°08'57" E  2,637.93' (M
)

S 01°08'57" E  2,637.93' (M
&R

)

28TH STREET
(25' PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY)

(UNIMPROVED AT THIS LOCATION)

S 68°41'07" E
64.35' (M)

S 22°06'02" W
26.70' (M)

S 01°12'32" E
25.00' (M)

3/8" CIRF "FRITZ
PLS 1694"

3/8" IRF3/8" IRF

3/8" CIRF
"RLS 1253"

3/8" CIRF
"RLS 1253"

3/8" CIRF
"RLS 1253"

1/2" CIRS
"CROWLEY

SURVEYING
PLS 1797"

UNABLE TO SET
(NO ACCESS)

1/2" CIRS
"CROWLEY

SURVEYING
PLS 1797"

1/2" CIRS
"CROWLEY

SURVEYING
PLS 1797"

STM STM STM STM STM STM STM

STM
STM

STM
STM

0HU 0HU 0HU

SIGN

SIGN

LIFT STATION

LIFT STATION
CONTROL BOX

3 PS

1 STORY METAL BUILDING
24,057 SQUARE FEET
BUILDING HEIGHT: 11.3'±

X BHL

25 PS

4 
PS

 1
 H

PS

1/2" CIRS
"CROWLEY

SURVEYING
PLS 1797"

N 90°00'00" E  100.00' (R)

ADJOINER BUILDING

38.2'
CONCRETE
PAVEMENT

25.8'
CONCRETE
PAVEMENT

21.0'
ASPH

ALT
PAVEM

EN
T

AC
C

ESS

G
ATE

GATE

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ST
M

ASPH
ALT SID

EW
ALK

ASPH
ALT SID

EW
ALK

ASPH
ALT SID

EW
ALK

ASPH
ALT SID

EW
ALK

0.8'

5.4'

1.8'

4.6'

BENCH MARK 1
"X" CUT

ELEV: 648.66'

BENCH MARK 3
60D NAIL

ELEV: 649.75'

CONCRETE
PAD

5.5'

N 89°19'03" E  100.01' (R)

119.2'

63.8'

282.8'

BENCH MARK 2
"X" CUT

ELEV: 649.51'

S 00°03'35" E  527.27' (R
)

N 88°51'03" E  100.31' (M)
N 90°00'00" W  235.00' (R)

1318.20' (M
)

DIRT
PEDESTRIAN
PATH

0.5'

LIFT STATION
CONTROL BOX

S 00°00'00" E  186.00' (R
)

3/8" IRF

10.00'

10.00' BUILDING SETBACK LINE

BUILDING SETBACK LINE

10.00'

30.00'

PROPOSED STORAGE BUILDING
1-STORY - 35,000 SF

FENCE AS REQUIRED BY CODE
- TO MATCH EXISTING

FENCE AND SCREENING AS
REQUIRED BY CODE

PROPOSED LOT LINE
FOR FUTURE USE

FUTURE ACCESS TO OUT PARCEL
(BY OTHERS NOT INCLUDED IN DESIGN)

EXISTING DETENTION
BASIN IS  SIZED FOR FULL
LOT DEVELOPMENT

FENCE TO MATCH
EXISTING

PROPOSED STORAGE BUILDING
1-STORY - 47,000 SF

30.00'

131.00'

358.00'

OUT PARCEL: APPROX. 2.80 AC
ZONE CS

OUT PARCEL: APPROX. 1.0 AC
ZONE CS

EXISTING STORAGE BUILDING
1-STORY - 24,000 SF

ACCESS DRIVE

30.00'

30.00'

EXISTING FENCE

131.00'

83.17'

68.52'

30.00'

30.00'

59.52'

36.34'

30.00'

268.00'

FENCE AND SCREENING
AS REQUIRED BY CODE

41.00'

10.00'

10.00'

BUILDING SETBACK LINE

PROPERTY
BOUNDARY

PROPERTY
BOUNDARY

PROPERTY BOUNDARY

BUILDING SETBACK LINE

EXISTING GATED ACCESS

PROPOSED LOT LINE
FOR FUTURE USE

41.00'

00 50' 100'

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Designed By:  CJR

Drawn By: CJR

Checked By: CJR

Date: 11/09/2023

Project #: 20-700-331-1

H
EA

RT
H

FI
RE

 H
O

LD
IN

G
S

G
IL

CR
EA

SE
 E

XP
RE

SS
 S

TO
RA

G
E

28
17

 N
 P

EO
RI

A 
AV

E,
 T

U
LS

A,
 O

K

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
ES

IG
N

 - 
BO

A

# Revision Date

SITE ZONING:   CS
ADJACENT ZONING: CS,RS-3

TOTAL SITE ACREAGE:   11.399 acres

SELF-STORAGE LOT ACREAGE:
· APPROXIMATELY 7.0 acres

BUILDING SETBACK:
· REQUIRED: 10'
· PROVIDED: 40' at minimum

TOTAL PROPOSED BUILDING GROSS SF:
· 82,000 SF
TOTAL EXISTING & PROPOSED GROSS SF:
· 106,000 SF

FAR OF PROPOSED SELF
STORAGE LOT: 0.36

SITE DATA

EXHIBIT "B"

20.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 50'



REVISED 11/29/2023 

Case Number:   BOA-23617 

Hearing Date:    12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Sean Wallace 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Harry Bjornberg   

Property Owner: Brosis Enterprises LLC 

Action Requested: Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS-3 District (45.031-D); Variance 
to allow the floor area of  detached accessory buildings to exceed 500 square feet and 40% of the floor area of the 
principal residential structure (Section 45.030-B);Variance to allow more than 30% coverage by an Accessory 
Dwelling Unit in the rear setback in the RS-3 District (Section 90.090-C); Variance to allow a detached Accessory 
Dwelling Unit to exceed one story or 18 feet in height and to exceed 10 feet in height to the top of the top plate in 
the rear setback (Section 90.090-C).   

Location Map: Additional Information: 

Present Use:    

Tract Size: 0.18 acres 

Location: 1520 S. St. Louis Ave. E 

Present Zoning: RS-3 

21.1



S
 U

T
IC

A
 A

V
E

E 13TH ST S

E 15TH ST S

E 19TH ST S

E 13TH PL S

E 12TH ST S

E 14TH ST S

E 17TH ST S

S
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

S
 T

R
O

O
S

T
 A

V
E

E 20TH ST S

S
 Q

U
IN

C
Y

 A
V

E

S
 W

H
E

E
L

IN
G

 A
V

E

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

SWAN DR

S
 T

R
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

E

E 14TH PL S

E 22ND ST S

S
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

S
 X

A
N

T
H

U
S

 A
V

E

E 18TH ST S

S
 O

W
A

S
S

O
 A

V
E

S
 N

E
W

P
O

R
T

 A
V

E

E 16TH PL S

E 16TH ST S

S
 U

T
IC

A
 P

LE 11TH PL S

S
 V

IC
T

O
R

 A
V

E

E 17TH PL S

S
 Q

U
IN

C
Y

 A
V

E

E 17TH PL S

S
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

E 14TH PL S

S
 Q

U
IN

C
Y

 A
V

E

E 17TH PL S

S
 O

W
A

S
S

O
 A

V
E

E 16TH ST S

S
 X

A
N

T
H

U
S

 A
V

E

E 17TH PL S

S
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

E 17TH ST S

S
 V

IC
T

O
R

 A
V

E

S
 T

R
O

O
S

T
 A

V
E

S
 W

H
E

E
L

IN
G

 A
V

E

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

S
 O

W
A

S
S

O
 A

V
E

S
 V

IC
T

O
R

 A
V

E

S
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

S
 W

H
E

E
L

IN
G

 A
V

E

S
 T

R
O

O
S

T 
AV

E

E 14TH PL S

E 18TH ST S

S
 V

IC
T

O
R

 A
V

E

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

S
 T

R
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 X

A
N

T
H

U
S

 A
V

E

S
 T

R
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

S
 N

E
W

P
O

R
T

 A
V

E

E 20TH ST S

E 16TH ST S

E 17TH PL S

PUD-478

PUD-772

PUD-432D

PUD-432B

PUD-432C

PUD-432

PUD-432E

PUD-432A

PUD-553

PUD-728

PUD-811

PUD-728

PUD-708A
PUD-708

PUD-728-B

PUD-760

PUD-728-B

PUD-437
PUD-437-A

PUD-561

PUD-296

PUD-760A

PUD-614

PUD-728A

PUD-697

Z-7555

£¤64!(51

RM-2

RS-3RS-3

IMX

CH

RS-3

RS-2

RS-3

RS-3

CH

RS-3

OL

CH

OL

OH

RS-2

CH

RS-4

CH

CS

RS-4

RM-2

OH

CH

RM-2

CS

OM

RM-2

OL

OL

CH

RM-2

CH

OL

OL

OM

CH

RM-2

CH

OL

OMH

OL

OMH

OMH

CS CS

OH

OL

OL

OL

CS

RD

OM

PK

OL

OL

PK

CH

MX1-P-U

PK
PK

OL

OM

PK

RS-3
MX2-U-U

OL

OL

PK

RM-2

PK

OL

RM-2

RM-2

CS

S
 P

E
O

R
IA

 A
V

E

E 21ST ST S

HP

HP

HP

HP

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23617

Subject Tract

21.2



S
 U

T
IC

A
 A

V
E

E 19TH ST S

E 13TH ST S

E 15TH ST S

E 13TH PL S

E 12TH ST S

E 14TH ST S

E 17TH ST S

S
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

S
 T

R
O

O
S

T
 A

V
E

E 20TH ST S

SWAN DR

S
 W

H
E

E
L

IN
G

 A
V

E

E 14TH PL S

S
 O

W
A

S
S

O
 A

V
E

E 18TH ST S

S
 Q

U
IN

C
Y

 A
V

E

S
 V

IC
T

O
R

 A
V

E

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

S
 T

R
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

E

E 16TH PL S

E 16TH ST S

S
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

E 17TH PL S

S
 O

W
A

S
S

O
 A

V
E

E 17TH PL S

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

E 17TH PL S

E 14TH PL S

S
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

S
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

S
 O

W
A

S
S

O
 A

V
E

S
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

E 17TH PL S

E 16TH ST S

S
 T

R
O

O
S

T
 A

V
E

S
 Q

U
IN

C
Y

 A
V

E

S
 V

IC
T

O
R

 A
V

E

S
 Q

U
A

K
E

R
 A

V
E

S
 T

R
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 W

H
E

E
L

IN
G

 A
V

E

S
 R

O
C

K
F

O
R

D
 A

V
E

E 18TH ST S

S
 T

R
E

N
T

O
N

 A
V

E

S
 Q

U
IN

C
Y

 A
V

E

E 17TH ST S

E 20TH ST S

E 16TH ST S

E 17TH PL S

£¤64!(51

S
 P

E
O

R
IA

 A
V

E

E 21ST ST S

HPHP

HP

HP

0 200 400
Feet oBOA-23617

Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

21.3



S
 G

A
R

Y
 P

L

S
 G

A
R

Y
 A

V
E

E 16TH ST S

E 17TH ST S

RS-3

E 16TH ST S

S
 S

T
 L

O
U

IS
 A

V
E

HP

0 100 200
Feet oBOA-23617 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely

align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2021

Subject
Tract

21.4



REVISED 11/29/2023 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

STR: 9307 Case Number: BOA-23617 
CD: 4 

HEARING DATE: 12/12/2023 1:00 PM 

APPLICANT: Harry Bjornberg 

ACTION REQUESTED: Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS-3 District (45.031-D); 
Variance to allow the floor area of  detached accessory buildings to exceed 500 square feet and 40% of the floor 
area of the principal residential structure (Section 45.030-B);Variance to allow more than 30% coverage by an 
Accessory Dwelling Unit in the rear setback in the RS-3 District (Section 90.090-C); Variance to allow a detached 
Accessory Dwelling Unit to exceed one story or 18 feet in height and to exceed 10 feet in height to the top of the top 
plate in the rear setback (Section 90.090-C).   

LOCATION: 1520 S. St. Louis Ave. E ZONED: RS-3 

PRESENT USE: garage TRACT SIZE: 8002 SQ FT 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LT 5 BLK 5 & 10 FT VAC ALLEY, ORCUTT ADDN CITY OF TULSA, TULSA COUNTY, 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA 

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS: None. 

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The Tulsa Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property 
as “Neighborhood.” 

Neighborhoods are “Mostly Residential Uses” which includes detached, missing middle, and multi-dwelling unit 
housing types. Churches, schools, and other low-intensity uses that support residents’ daily needs are often 
acceptable, particularly for properties abutting Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional Center land use areas. 
Multi-dwelling unit housing that takes access off of an arterial is considered Multiple Use, Local Center, or Regional 
Center. If a multi-dwelling unit housing property takes access off of a lower-order street separated from the arterial, 
then it would be considered Neighborhood. 

STAFF ANALYSIS:  The applicant is requesting a Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS- 
3 District (45.031-D); Variance to allow the floor area of detached accessory buildings to exceed 500 square feet 
and 40% of the floor area of the principal residential structure (Section 45.030-B; 45.031.6.a); Variance to allow 
more than 30% coverage by an Accessory Dwelling Unit in the rear setback in the RS-3 District (Section 90.090-C); 
Variance to allow a detached Accessory Dwelling Unit to exceed one story or 18 feet in height and to exceed 10 feet 
in height to the top of the top plate in the rear setback (Section 90.090-C).  

21.5



REVISED 11/29/2023 

The applicant seeks to build a 2-story accessory building that is 21.6-feet in height at its peak (18ft 
allowed); with a floor area of 1,085 sq ft (allowed 824sq ft) covering 672 square feet (allowed 300sq ft) 
of the rear setback. 

(subject property) 

21.6



REVISED 11/29/2023 

 (approve/deny) a Special Exception to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit in an RS-3 

SAMPLE MOTION: 

Special Exception: 

Move to  
District (45.031-D); 

• Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s)  of the agenda packet. 

• Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any):

 . 

The Board finds that the requested Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code 
and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

Variance: 

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Variance to allow the floor area of detached accessory buildings to exceed 
500 square feet and 40% of the floor area of the principal residential structure (Section 45.030-A, 45.031-D.6); 
Variance to allow more than 30% coverage by an Accessory Dwelling Unit in the rear setback in the RS-3 District 
(Section 90.090-C); Variance to allow a detached Accessory Dwelling Unit to exceed one story or 18 feet in 
height and to exceed 10 feet in height to the top of the top plate in the rear setback (Section 90.090-C). 

• Finding the hardship(s) to be________________________________.

• Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet.

• Subject to the following conditions ___________________________.

In granting the Variance the Board finds that the following facts, favorable to the property owner, have been 
established:  

a. That the physical surroundings, shape, or topographical conditions of the subject property would result in
unnecessary hardships or practical difficulties for the property owner, as distinguished from a mere
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out;

b. That literal enforcement of the subject zoning code provision is not necessary to achieve the provision’s
intended purpose;

c. That the conditions leading to the need of the requested variance are unique to the subject property and
not applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;

d. That the alleged practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship was not created or self-imposed by the
current property owner;

e. That the variance to be granted is the minimum variance that will afford relief;

f. That the variance to be granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood in which
the subject property is located, nor substantially or permanently impair use or development of adjacent
property; and

g. That the variance to be granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the
purposes, spirit, and intent of this zoning code or the comprehensive plan.”

21.7



1 2 3 4 5

R
E
V
IS
IO
N
S R
E
M
A
R
K
S

M
M
/D
D
/Y
Y

GA
RA

GE
 R

EC
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

15
20

 S
O

U
TH

 S
T 

LO
U

IS
TU

LS
A,

 O
KL

AH
O

M
A

ARCHITECT

HARRY BJORNBERG
4853 S SHERIDAN RD,

TULSA OK 74145
918-724-4472

hbjorn@ewc1incorporated.com

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

KING ENGINEERING 
& CONSTRUCTION

4853 S SHERIDAN RD,
TULSA OK 74145

918-724-4472

A-200
ELEVATIONS

EAST ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0" SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

A-1A-2

A-3 A-4

PORCH RAILING IS TO
MATCH HOUSE PORCH
RAIL

3'
-6

"
9'

-2
 1

/8
"

9'
-2

 1
/8

"

7'
-0

"
2'

-2
 1

/8
"

COLUMN TO MATCH
MAIN HOUSE COLUMNS

PORCH RAILING IS TO
MATCH HOUSE PORCH
RAIL

COLUMN TO MATCH
MAIN HOUSE COLUMNS

EXTERIOR CLADDING
TO MATCH MAIN HOUSE

0 OVERHANG AT SOUTH
EAVE

18" OVERHANG AT NORTH
EAVE

A1
2-

A3
00

6/17
/23

TILE ROOFING

6/17
/23

TILE ROOFING

SLOPE TO BE DETERMINED
IN FIELD

21.8



1 2 3 4 5

R
E
V
IS
IO
N
S R
E
M
A
R
K
S

M
M
/D
D
/Y
Y

BUILDING SECTION
SCALE: 1/2"=1'-0"

HARRY BJORNBERG
4853 S SHERIDAN RD,

TULSA OK 74145
918-724-4472

hbjorn@ewc1incorporated.com

ARCHITECT

BUILDING SECTIONS / ELEVATIONS

A-500

GA
RA

GE
 R

EC
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

15
20

 S
O

U
TH

 S
T 

LO
U

IS
TU

LS
A,

 O
KL

AH
O

M
A

KING ENGINEERING 
& CONSTRUCTION

4853 S SHERIDAN RD,
TULSA OK 74145

918-724-4472

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

KING ENGINEERING 
& CONSTRUCTION

4853 S SHERIDAN RD,
TULSA OK 74145

918-724-4472

3/
4"

11
 7

/8
"

1 
1/

2"

1'
-2

 1
/8

"

AT WEST AND SOUTH WALLS

AT EAST AND NORTH WALLS
INTERIOR 5/8" GYP BD
EXTERIOR OSB SHEATHING
REFER TO STRUCTURAL
DRAWINGS

PLYWOOD FLOORING
RE STRUCTURAL

5/8" GYP BD ON 7/8"
RESILIENT FURRING
CHANNELS

AT GARAGE PROVIDE
TYPE X FIRE CODE GYP BD

INTERIOR 5/8" TYPE X FIRECODE GYP BD
EXTERIOR 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM CORE
eXP FIRE SHIELD SHEATHING

11 7/8" RIM BOARD

11 7/8" I JOISTS

PLATE HT
8'-1 1/2"

FLOOR DETAIL
SCALE: 3"=1'-0"

EXTERIORCLADDING TO MATCH
EXISTING HOUSE

3'
-1

0"
3'

-0
"

1'
-2

 1
/8

"

9'
-2

 1
/8

"

BUILDING SECTION
SCALE: 1/2"=1'-0"

ATTIC

TOILET

6'
-1

0"

3'
-1

0"

2'
-2

 1
/8

"
4"

8'
-0

"

A3-A200

12

8

R0OF SLOPE TO MATCH MAIN HOUSE
FIELD VERIFY

ATTICATTIC

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

(A
PP

RO
X)

6/17
/23A-1A-2

A-3

PLATE HT - 14'-0 1/8"

RIDGELINE
21'-6 1/2"

21.9



1 2 3 4 5

R
E
V
IS
IO
N
S R
E
M
A
R
K
S

M
M
/D
D
/Y
Y

31'-0"

20'-0"5" 5" 5"

5" 5"16'-0"2'-0" 2'-0" 3'-0"4" 5"

31'-0"

5"
5"

5'
-3

"

5" 5" 5"5'-0"10'-0"

12
'-0

 1
/2

"
4'

-9
 3

/4
"

4'
-9

 3
/4

"

3'
-0

"
5"

FLOOR PLANS

A-100

ARCHITECT

HARRY BJORNBERG
4853 S SHERIDAN RD,

TULSA OK 74145
918-724-4472

hbjorn@ewc1incorporated.com

GA
RA

GE
 R

EC
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

15
20

 S
O

U
TH

 S
T 

LO
U

IS
TU

LS
A,

 O
KL

AH
O

M
A

KING ENGINEERING 
& CONSTRUCTION

4853 S SHERIDAN RD,
TULSA OK 74145

918-724-4472

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

4'
-9

 3
/4

"
4'

-9
 3

/4
"

6'-0"

5" 3'-0"

9'-9"

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN GROUND FLOOR POWER / LIGHTING

SECOND FLOOR POWER / LIGHTING

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0" SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

A-1A-2

A-3 A-4

72" AFF

GFI
42" AFF

60
" A

FF

GFI

GF
I

GFI

GF
I

FPHB

WP

ALL KITCHEN OUTLETS
ARE 42" AFF

VERIFY RANGE UTILITY
REQUIREMANTS

36" VARIABLE 
SPEED FAN

72
" A

FF

72" AFF

75 CFM

HLV

GFI
42" AFF

WP

DARK SKY RATED
WET LOCATION

DARK SKY RATED
WET LOCATION

WET LOCATION

3'-0" 3'-0"4"1'-10" 1'-10"

JBOX, ELECTRIC
GARAGE DOOR OPENER

LINE OF BALCONY ABOVELINE OF BALCONY ABOVE

3'
-0

"
1'

-4
"

3'
-0

"

GARAGE CEILING TO
BE 5/8" FIRECODE X
GYP BOARD ON 7/8"
RESILIENT FURRING 
CHANNELS AT 24" OC

5/8" FIRECODE X
GYP BOARD EACH
SIDE OF 2x4 WOOD
STUDS AT 16" OC
PROVIDE 3 5/8"
BATT INSULATION

V
V V

V

NORTH

NORTH NORTH

NORTH

6'-0"

5'
-0

"

CENTERED ON DOOR
CENTER OF FIXTURE
AT 8'-0" AFF

35
00

 P
SI

, A
IR

 E
N

TR
AI

N
ED

CO
N

CR
ET

E 
PA

TI
O

3500 PSI, AIR ENTRAINED
CONCRETE STOOP

6'-0" W x 5'-0" L

MAXIMUM OVERHANG AT
WEST WALL 18". NORTHWEST CORNER
IS APPROX 3'-6" FROM
PROPERTY LINE.
FIELD VERIFY EXACT DIMENSION.
OVERHANG IS TO BE AT LEAST
24" FROM PROPERTY LINE

0" OVERHANG AT
SOUTH WALL

36" VARIABLE 
SPEED FAN

50 CFM MINIMUM

A7-A300

REFER TO A6-A300
FOR STAIR PLAN

A9-A300
A1

1-
A3

00

A10-A300 A12-A300

A5-A300

A4-A300

A3
-A

30
0

A2-A300

A1
-A

30
0

31'-8"

21
'-8

"

12
'-0

 1
/2

"
4'

-9
 3

/4
"

4'
-9

 3
/4

"

1'
-2

"
3'

-6
 1

/2
"

4'
-9

 3
/4

"
3'

-0
"

5'
-6

 1
/2

"

1'
-0

"
1'

-0
"

10
'-0

 1
/2

"

6'
-5

"
9'

-2
"

6'-0"

4'-2" 10'-2"

6/17
/23

21.10



R
E
V
IS
IO
N
S R
E
M
A
R
K
S

M
M
/D
D
/Y
Y

GA
RA

GE
 R

EC
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

15
20

 S
O

U
TH

 S
T 

LO
U

IS
TU

LS
A,

 O
KL

AH
O

M
A

HARRY BJORNBERG
4853 S SHERIDAN RD,

TULSA OK 74145
918-724-4472

hbjorn@ewc1incorporated.com

KING ENGINEERING 
& CONSTRUCTION

4853 S SHERIDAN RD,
TULSA OK 74145

918-724-4472

ARCHITECT

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

A-300
DETAILS

11 1/2"

1"10 1/4"

1/2"

14
 E

Q
 R

IS
ER

S 
= 

9'
-2

"
7.

86
"

3'-0" 8'-6 1/2"

10 EQUAL TREADS @ 10.25"

3'
-0

"

1'
-8

 1
/2

"
3 

EQ
 R

IS
ER

S
11

 E
Q

 R
IS

ER
S

TO
TA

L 
RI

SE
 9

'-2
 1

/8
"

KITCHEN ELEVATION
SCALE 1/4"=1'-0"

KITCHEN ELEVATION
SCALE 1/4"=1'-0"

KITCHEN ELEVATION
SCALE 1/4"=1'-0"

VANITY ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

VANITY ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

STAIR PLAN
SCALE: 1/2"=1'-0"

STAIR SECTION
SCALE: 1/2"=1'-0"

TREAD / RISER DETAIL
SCALE: 3"=1'-0"

4'-4 3/4"

3'-0"

1'-6" 1'-6" 5'-0"

2'-6" 2'-6"

9'-9" 6'-0"

3'-4"1'-0" 1'-0"2'-2 1/2" 2'-2 1/2" 1'-0" 1'-0" 1'-6"2'-6"

2'-6" 1'-6"2'-0"

8'
-0

"

2'
-1

0"
2'

-2
"

3'
-0

"

2'-0" 2'-0"3'-0"
1'-4 1/2" 1'-4 1/2"

2'-0"

3'-6"

2'-6" 1'-0"

1'-6"

REF

A-1A-2A-3A-4A-5A-6

A-7

A-8

ALL CABINETS ARE TO BE
AWI CUSTOM GRADE

GFIGFI

MIRROR

EXHAUST HOOD

PANRTY 

2 ADJUSTIBLE
SHELVES

1" X 11 1/2" HARDWOOD
TREAD

3/4" HARDWOOD RISER

WOOD STRINGER - 3 PER RUN

RE: A8-A300

CUT STRINGER TO MATCH
BASE HEIGHT

6'-0" (APPROX)

2 x 4 WOODSTUDS
AT 24" OC

2 x 4 CLEAT AT WALL

STRINGER

A7
-A

30
0

A9
-A

30
0

EXTERIOR CLADDING TO
MATCH MAIN HOUSE,
SELECTED BY OWNER

LP FLAME BLOCK
FIRE RATED OSB SHEATHING

3 5/8" BATT INSULATION

5/8" FIRECODE X GYP BOARD

2 x 4 WOOD STUDS AT
16" OC

2 x 4 WOOD STUDS AT
16" OC

5/8" FIRECODE X GYP BOARD

3 5/8" BATT INSULATION

BALCONY RAIL DETAIL
SCALE: 3/4"= 1'-0"

EXTERIOR WALL DETAIL
SCALE: 3'=1'-0" WEST AND SOUTH WALLS A-9 A-10 A-11 PARTITION DETAIL

SCALE: 3"=1'-0" GARAGE / ADU SEPARATION

5" 5"1'-2"

5"
1'

-2
"

5"

BRICK VENEER, PAINT
TO MATCH MAIN
HOUSE

OSB SHEATHING

2 x 4 WOOD STUDS

WOOD COLUMN
RE: STRUCTURAL

PORCH COLUMN
SCALE: 1 1/2"=1'-0"A-12

6/17
/23

3'
-6

"

4"

5 3/8"
GUARDRAIL CAP
RE: A13-A300

1 1/2 X 1 1/2 STEEL
TUBES WELDED TO 
1 1/2 X 1/4 STEEL
PLATE TOP AND BOTTOM

BEAM, RE: STRUCTURAL

HARDWOOD TRIM

COUNTER SUNK WOOD 
SCREWS @ 12" OC

3" LONG

CURB BLOCKING AS
REQUIRED

3 3/4"

HARDWOOD RAIL CAP

1 1/4" COUNTER SUNK
WOOD SCREWS AT 12" OC

1 1/2" SQUARE STEEL TUBES
AT 5 3/8" OC.
WELD TO 1/4" x 1 1/2" CONTINUOUS
STEEL PLATE AT TOP AND
BOTTOM

RAIL CAP
NO SCALEA-13

21.11



1 2 3 4 5

R
E
V
IS
IO
N
S R
E
M
A
R
K
S

M
M
/D
D
/Y
Y

GA
RA

GE
 R

EC
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

15
20

 S
O

U
TH

 S
T 

LO
U

IS
TU

LS
A,

 O
KL

AH
O

M
A

HARRY BJORNBERG
4853 S SHERIDAN RD,

TULSA OK 74145
918-724-4472

hbjorn@ewc1incorporated.com

KING ENGINEERING 
& CONSTRUCTION

4853 S SHERIDAN RD,
TULSA OK 74145

918-724-4472

ARCHITECT

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

A-000
COVER SHEET

GARAGE RECONSTRUCTION
WITH AN ADU
1520 SOUTH ST LOUIS
TULSA, OKLAHOMA

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

THIS PROJECT INCLUDES THE RECONSTRUCTION OF A
PREVIOUSLY DEMOLISHED GARAGE WITH THE ADDITION OF
AN ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT (ADU).

THE GARAGE / ADU IS TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON THE
ORIGINAL FOOTPRINT OF THE PREVIOUSLY
DEMOLISHED GARAGE.

THE NEW CONSTRUCTION WILL BE IN COMPLIANCE
WITH IRC 2018.

GARAGE AREA: 444 SF
ADU AREA:

GROUND FLOOR: 220 SF
SECOND FLOOR: 421 SF

ADU TOTAL: 641 SF

TOTAL AREA:            1,085 SF

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: WALLS: 2x4 WOOD STUDS
FLOOR: WOOD I JOISTS WITH 

PLYWOOD DECKING
ROOF: WOOD STICK FRAMING (RESTR’L)

ADU SEPARATION: COMPLIES WITH TABLE 302.6

DRAWING INDEX

A-000 COVER SHEET
A-100 FLOOR PLAN / CEILING PLAN
A-200 BUILDING ELEVATIONS
A-300 DETAILS
A-500 BUILDING SECTIONS

6/17
/23

STRUCTURAL

ARCHITECTURAL

S-1 FLOOR AND ROOF FRAMING PLAN
S-2 SECTIONS AND ELEVATIONS
S-3 FOUNDATION PLAN AND DETAILS

EXISTING SINGLE
FAMILY RESIDENCE

31
'-0

"

21'-8"

3'-0" FROM
PROPERTY
LINE

3'-0" FROM
PROPERTY
LINE

5'-0" FROM
PROPERTY 
LINE

PROPOSED
GARAGE/ADU

21.12


	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	7. 23557 – Lou Reynolds

	NEW APPLICATIONS
	8. 23600 – Bell Land Use LLC, Robert Bell
	9. 23602 – Robby A. Coday
	10. 23603 – Janet Espino
	11. 23604 – Randy Glad
	12. 23605 – Ashton Prickett
	13. 23606 – Chris Ossenbeck
	14. 23608 – SBWG, LLC
	15. 23609 – Tim Boeckman, CJC Architects
	16. 23611 – David Brunson
	17. 23612 – Nathan Cross
	18. 23613 – AAB Engineering, LLC
	19. 23614 – Mark Capron, Wallace Design Collective
	20. 23616 – Nathan Cross
	21. 23617 – Harry Bjornberg

	ADJOURNMENT
	BOA-23614.pdf
	BOA-23614
	BOA-23614_Aerial
	BOA-23614_AerialCloseup
	20231012 - Exterior Renderings
	Exterior_5 - Photo
	Exterior_2 - Photo
	Exterior_8 - Photo
	Exterior_13 - Photo
	Exterior_3 - Photo
	Exterior_9 - Photo
	Exterior_6 - Photo
	Exterior_7 - Photo
	Exterior_10 - Photo

	Site Plan.pdf

	BOA-23613.pdf
	BOA-23613
	BOA-23613_Aerial
	BOA-23613_AerialCloseup
	doc01724520231031084029.pdf

	BOA-23612.pdf
	BOA-23612.pdf
	BOA-23612
	BOA-23612_Aerial
	BOA-23612_AerialCloseup


	BOA-23611.pdf
	BOA-23611.pdf
	BOA-23611
	BOA-23611_Aerial
	BOA-23611_AerialCloseup


	BOA-23609.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	BOA-23609 Aerial
	BOA-23609
	BOA-23609_AerialCloseup

	STBC A1 Site Plan

	BOA-23557.pdf
	BOA-23557.pdf
	BOA-23557.pdf
	BOA-23557.pdf
	BOA-23557 Exhibit Packet (2023 0822).pdf
	2696_001.pdf
	BOA-23557 Exhibit Packet (2023 0808).pdf
	BOA-23557 Exhibit Packet.pdf
	2023-0712 OverallSite.pdf
	2023-0517 Zoning.pdf







	BOA-23617.pdf
	BOA-23617
	BOA-23617_Aerial
	BOA-23617_AerialCloseup
	Binder8.pdf
	A-300 DETAILS.pdf
	A-200 ELEVATIONS.pdf
	A-100 Floor Plan.pdf
	A-000 COVER SHEET REV.pdf
	A 500 Building Section.pdf

	BOA-23617
	Special Exception:


	BOA-23616.pdf
	BOA-23616
	BOA-23616_Aerial
	BOA-23616_AerialCloseup
	Exhibit A - Legal Description
	EXHIBIT _B_ -Preliminary Design-BOA.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C201






